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Skanska UK Plc (Registered numbep: 00784752)

Group Strategic Report
For The Year Ended 3151 December 2022

The Dircetors present their strategie report of Skanska UK Ple (the *Company’) and its subsidiaties (together the *Group™) for
the year ended 3 1st December 2022,

Business model

Skansks UK Ple generates value through the hundreds of projects the Group exccutes cach year, Fvery projeel should both be
profitable amt delivered in line with Skanska’s values and ambition to by a leader within sustainability. Skanska UK opcrations
niainly consist ol construction uctivities. Operating units within the construction business collaborite in various ways, crealing
operations} and Nnancial synergies that generate increascd value,

Financial position and review

The Grovup reported total revenucs of £1,400.2 mitlion (20211 £1,249.6 million including discontinued operations] and profit
before uterest and 1ax of £43.2 willion (2021 £72.6 million including discontinued vperations) with w0 morgin of 3. 1% (2021
5.8%%). For the year ended 31 December 2021, profil before interest and tax includud « £29.1 million gain on the disposal of
Infrastruciure Services. See Note 35 for details of the latal results including prior year discontinued operations.

The Group™s total equity decreascd by L1853 million. Total equity attributable o sharcholders nl the year-end was £344.2
million {2021 £362.7 million). Our consulidated year-end cash and cash equivalents totatled L4415 million (2021: £519.7
niillion), a decrease of £78.2 million in e year, The year-on-year movemenl was mainly due lo the paymeat of £65 million
in dividends Lo the immediate parent ootity, Net cash used in operaling aclivities was £3.2 million (2021: inflow £76.6 millian).
The Group has no deb(.
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Principal risks and uncertaintics

The Group's principal risks and uncertaintics arc related to the contracls it undertakes to perform, Exposure to credit, interest
rate and liguidity risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s business:

Management has a credit policy in place. Credit evaluations are performed on all prospective cuslomers prior to entering
into consiruction contracts and exposure Lo credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. At the statersent of linancial
position date there was no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented hy
the carrying amount of trade receivables and amounts due [rom customers For contract work at the statement of financial

position date.

e The Group docs nol seek to reduce exposure 1o fluctuations in interest rates through the use of derivative [inancial
instruments. The Group meels its day to day working capital requirements through an inter-Company UK pooling
amrangement and does not have any bank debt or other external borrowings or facilities.

s  Liquidity/cash flow risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty meeting ebligations associaled with {inancial
liabilities. The Group aims ro mitigate these risks by selting and monitoring cash {low targets and by assessing credit

worthiness of all material business pariners.

* Russia’s invasion of Ukraine introduced increased risk fo all areas of the Group during 2022 iacluding risk of price
{luctuations, worklorce and material supply, and energy price fluctuations. Pelitical change in the UK Government during
2022 added 1o these risks. A risk averse culture coupled with open and collaborative relationships with our stakeholders
has and will continue to mitigale any impact on delivery and financial performance.

*  Since the UK left the EU, Brexit has not had a material financial impact on the Group. A reason for this is that we have
worked closely with our key supply chain lo ensure the fatlout from Lhe EU exit (as well as the COVID-19 return to work
and Ukraine war) is managed from a risk perspective including availability of workforce. The Gronp continues to review
all aspects of how this legislative change could impact its operation and ensure steps are in place to mitigate any financial

degradation.

Major contract wins

105 Victoria Streei, London — Delivery of a mixed-use commercial development at 105 Victoria Street London, worth £235
million. The building will provide 470,000 square foot of commercial office space over sixteen floors, along with retail units
at ground level. Skanska will deliver the building construction and mechanical and engineering services.

Fehicle Storage and Support Programme (VSSF) — A £259 million vehicle storage hub in Tewkesbury, Gloucestershire for
the Defence Infrasiructure Organisation (D10). The project will sce the demalition of 58 buildings, construction of 12 new
buildings, refurbishment of onc existing facility, and the renewal of site-wide infrastructure to transform the British Army’s

fleet storage hub to maintain and protect more than 4,000 vehicles.

RDP A48 Newark Bypass — upgrading a 4-mile stretch of the A46 Newark Bypass, a key route that connects the At and M1,
and part of a strategically important scheme in the Government’s Road lnvestinent Strategy. Skanska will design and construct
the widening of the A46 to a dual carriageway, providing two lanes in each direction between the Farndon and Winthorpe
junctions. Works will also include the construction ol a new five-arm roundabout at Winthorpe and traffic lights at the Farndon
junction o improve Iraffic flows during peak howurs. A new bridge will be built 10 1ake (raffic over the A, and a Mlyover
installed at Caltte Market. The scheme s expected o cost between £4060-£580 million.
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Guovernance [Framework

Skanska AR hos adopled & Group Governance Framewark consisting of steering documents that define how Skanska's
operations are run and controlled: how we are organized, what standards and process we work by, how we manage risks, at
what levels decisions are made and what is mandatory for ail Skanska business units, In turn, to sult ils marketplace and
siluation, Skanska UK has adopled polities. procedures and guidelings which set out the minimum seguivements lor the
respective areas they cover. A clear framewark of policies. procedures snd standitrds reduces our risks. fucreases our
effectiveness, and makes it ensicr. as a business and for individual employees. to live by our Cede of Conduct and Values, An
ammual review iy caericd oul of all thie Shanska Af? and Skanska UK governance policies.

11y addition to thie abase, since 2018 the UK Group has applicd the Wates Carporate Govermance Principles for Large Private
Companies which build upon the themes of the Group Governance Framework.

Values provide Business henefits

We want our strong Skanska values Lo guide everyiling we do and they are essential to canbributing Lo sogiety. Increasingly.
employees want to work for companies with cloar valucs, We are seeing more eustomers and pariners choose Skanska in pus)
because of our values, Tlhrough what we do and liow we work, we help ensere sustainable fulures fur our people, customers.
and conumunities. We focus an 1he sustainabilily arcas in whick we ean mohe the most significant positive contributions:
Safety, Ethics, Green, Community luvestment. and Trelusion and Diversity.

All of these areas relate 1o om core business and expentise amd ate interconusedied.
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Sulety, heslth and wellbeing

During 2022 we continued to maintein our focus on improving our culture and performance in the arens of safety, health and
wellbeing (SHW). We have increased our attention on learning from events and putting in place permanent chianges to reduce
tite likelihood of high polential incidences. Qur programme on hecoming oulstanding at Lifting, Loading and Lowering
operations has had a positive impact on how we plan and manage 1ifling operations. We have successfully held our lost iime
accident rate (LTAR) at pre-pandenmic levels. We contmenced targeted programmes on visible leadership and project phase
risk. whirh we are eonfident will reduce our LTAR during 2023, We have adopted the group approach to safety, using the
hicrarchy of controi and we are increasingly using elimination of risk as the objective during design and planning as against

risk management during construction.

[n 2021 the performance of the business was overshadowed by a fatality on one of our prajects. As a result of our investigation
into the incident, we have led manufacturers, industry, and peer groups to modify or remove, specific types of equipment from
tier 1 contractors” sites. This action and industry wide adoption is reparded as one of the most successful industry interventions
for a safety issuc in recent years, We are continuing to wark with manufacturers and industry bodies, to agree an amendmeni
10 the EN standard for lorry loader stabiliser operation to prevent further incidences.

During 2022 we have continued to imove the facus on safety and health, from sile operations o the design and planning stage.
By elimination and substitution of the wark aclivities 1o reduce exposure to risk, we are confident we will further improve
safety and health as well as operational efficiency and quality. Further work is ongoing in this area and the SHW function
works closely wiih the technical forum and principal designer group, to develop early changes in the design and propramine

t0 reduce risk.

Wellbeing and mental health are a concern for many, and we have run several webinars on resilience and wellbeing throughout
the year. Increasing the number of discussions on wellbeing and mental health, is helping to remove the sligma of mental il
health, which is one of our ambitions for improved mental health and wellbeing. These events and webinars have been weil
received and we continue {0 build on our mental health programme, During 2022 we expanded our mental heaith programme
from providing mental health first aid, into creating the right environment for people to thrive. This has been done by working
closely with human resources and looking more holistically at people’s working environmnent and linkages to diversity and

creating an inclusive culture.

Our continied work on evalualing data and trends has identified an opportunity to enhance our Injury-free environment (IFE)
programme, which is now in #ts thirteenth year. The next phase is to develop people’s understanding of their choices and
rcsultant behaviours. This has been developed with third partics and the programme will be implemented in 2023,

Independent survey of our cusiomers, supply chain pariners and our employees have all returned positive feedback that peint
towards Skanska UK being a leader in SHW.

We have continued to maintain 15045001 cerlification.

Ethics

Within the Graup we work in line with Skanska AB's Code of Conduct te maintain high standards of sustainable, transparent
and responsible activilies, to betier meet the long-lerm demands of the Group's shareholders, customers and employees, as
well as socicty at large. Our aim is to cnsurc all projects refleet our purpese and are not only profitable but are delivered

without ethical breaches and with a transparent and inclusive culture.

During 2022 we maintained our focus on ethics with a varied programme of Code ol Conduct-related aclivities and we continue
1o ensure that all new cmployees are trained before they start work with Skanska. In addition, our employees are required to
take part in regular 'difema’ discussions where they debste how they would approach a variety of situations. A key thread
throughoul the year was an action plan lacking at our ethical processes in areas such as inclusion and diversity, modem slavery,
supply chain commitment, etc. As well as internal communications, we place additional focus on understanding our ethical
responsibilities in relation to partners and suppliers. We developed our processes for serutinising the ethical culture of potential
pastners, and 1o furlher engage our supply chain we work te ensure our Supplier Code is discussed in start-up meelings with
supplicrs, and we include ethics as an agenda item at our various supplier cngagement cvents,

In 2022, a (olat of 20 reports of alleged breach of the Code of Conduct were received by the Skanska UK Ethics Committee
(2021: 18). Cases were categarised in line with the topics in Skanska’s Code of Conducl, The largest number of reports were
cancemmed with HR-related matters, such as behaviour in the workplace, Other categories ol reparts were health and safety and
Company property. Across all cotegories, 3 cases determined o breach of the Code of Conduct {2021: 2), however none of

them was considered a high risk to the business.
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Favironment

The Group is required to pursue environmental policies that comply with relevani legislation ;nd standards applicable to their
pariicufar disciplines. Beyond this, the Group, in fine with the wider Skanska Group, is committed (o protecting tie
environment and making a positive contribution to a morc sustainable world through improving the environmental
perfurmance of all our products and services. Furthermore, the Group is committed 10 operating with net-zera carbon
cmissions across all its scopes by no later than 2045. Since the publicalion of this objective in 2014 the Group has commiticd
significant resources inlo developing industry leading de-carbonisation capability and has since published an additional suite
of sub-targets and milestones outlining in more detail how it will achicve this target. Our aim i5 to be the maost respected
contractor by our customers fur our approach to sustainability and in paticulacly vur low cacbon capability.

In terms ol overall environmental management, the Group comtinues our excellent track record as we apply contisual
impravement ta our approach. In 2022 we:

»  Continued the roll-oul of vur new Enviconmental Complinnee Scheme training course baunched jn 20210, which is
targeted al site and operational leadership rofes and is more comprehensive (han industry standard environmental
site management fraining courses, and we also added new content;

»  Developed and launched a new PMO {Programme Management Office) upproach to managing our cavironmental
initiatives, which now supportls our new 9-peint envicenmental cotppliznce stralepy;

. Maintained 2 stable Fnvironmental Incident Frequency Rate (1R} partially resulting trom an enhanced locus on
transparent reporting mul investigalions;

¢ Developed new plans for biodiversity and waste inanagement improvements: and

¢ Reoruited top talent internadly and externally into our environmental tam te grsure swe rermain industey feading.

The Group remains focussed on delivering vur multi-yenr siratepy Lo signiticanly improve our carbon reduction capabifity so
that we de-carbonise at a quicker rate than our industry and provide industry leading support W our clicnts in their de-
carbonisation journeys. Building on previnus years the plan remains structured into 6 forus arcas:

»  Skills and capabilities for key roles: By the end of 2022 we had trained over 400 key stalf in project leadership,
pracurement, design and commurcial on carbon reduction skifls;

= Carbon data/ measeremenl: We vontinue W pubdish as annual transparen estimaie of owr direct and indirect (supply
chain) emissions to the market, converiing as much data from estimation to actuals as pessible;

o Digital cost aud carbon management tools: We have fnvested ia praject-level digital carbon and cost mranagement
lwols and developed n business-level model for carbon dusta flows;

«  Net-zero materials (focussing on concrete and steel): We Tave embedded our fow carbon materials expert group
established in 2021 and have trialled a varicly of low carbon alternatives across vur projecls, including a well-
publicised trial of alow carbon concrete coupled with low carbon bysalt steel alternative reinforcement. Further 1o
this, in 2022 Skenska UK was a signatory Tounder 1o two of the Climate Group®s industry leading low carbon
materials commitments: StechZero and ConereteZero: and

»  Nel-zero plant and iranspoyt: We continued our mandated vse of hydro-trealed vegelable oil (11V0) binfucl dicsel
altenmative geross our direet-hired plant. We invested o an clectric piling rig for our foundations business, as part
of a joint venture we achicved Iligh Speed 2's first dicsel-Trec operaling site. We hosted a cross-induslry ovent
exploving next steps for the hydrogen ceotiomy in construction. Finully, we continue the roll-osut of electric vehicles
4CTOSS our company car fleet.

The delivery of our net-zero and broader environmentat objectives is poverned internally through the Groups averatl business
planning process and driven by the Excculive Mupagement Team (EMT).  VUxternally we coutinne to demonstrate our
credentials through 2 range ol certifications, including continued verification under the Achitles *Carbon Reduce” programme
{formerly Certified Emissions Mcasurcment and Reduction Scheme {CEMARS)), wmaintenance of 1501400115 for
environmental management. and successfully maintaining external re-certification to the PAS2080 Carbon Muonagetment in
Infrastruclure specification. Qur pct-zero emissions Iarget which supporls Skanska Gronp's overal] nel-zero targel js validated
by the Science Based Targets [nitiative (SHT).

Although the miajority of our resvurces are aimed at continual improvement in environmiental perlonnance amd sustainable
business, we also aim to suppor! profitable work wimming, through investments in brand and industry leadership, in order to
maimain our industry leading position. We support winning profitable suslainable business through continued engagement
with our customers both directly wnd through industry bodies and other events. Tn 2022, the Group was involved with several
industry sustainahility events, such as hosting the 2022 [lipghwiys UK event as ‘sustainability sponsor, delivering 4 key-note
speech at the Institute of Civil Fngineers (ICE) Carbon Crunch eveat, speaking on a pane! atthe London Buikl Expe, and mast
nolubly, our relationship with the Swedish Chiamber of Commerce as their *climale pariner”, The Group was alse namied joint
whner of thie 2022 Sustaimble Facilitics Management Index (SFMI1) lor sustainabilily performuice in our facilities
management business, and winner of the ‘Carbon Reduction' award at the Federation of Piling Specinlists (FF'5) 2022 awards.
Other industry roles included Skanska Director of Enviromment Adam Crossley maintaining his appuointments as u member of
CO2asiructyicro’s Programmme Boacd and member of the Construction | .cadership Council’s Green Construction Board (GCR).
The Group slso msintained enpagement with two key green imdusiry bedies, the All-Paty Parliamentary Group for the
Environment (AEG) and the Supply Chyin Sustaimability School (SCSS).
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The tablc betow details the Group's encrgy and carbon consumption [or the year ended 3 Ist December 2022,

= 2022 % aclivity 2021 2020 2019 2010
Greanhouse Gasos Scope and Emission Source g 5 spocific exclusions data 1C02e
= TCO2e KWh estimatod | TCOZe | TCD2e | TCO2e baseline
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ﬁz:"?::"”m"“m a1 Skanska controllec ofces and| 178 070,440 Hoe 0% 247} zms| as8| 53
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" Sransie fof use by
f't:’l" me' “IG” .';‘ | & HVO) cansumed by Skanska onf | o76| 29.9¢7.498| thers nbackup 0% a1z28| s56i3| 1302|6408
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intensity Motric {emisslons  Emilllon revenuo) [ 33] [ 72] o8] "F8F] 273
Scope 3
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estimeied recorderd
N Enfssions extbrated
Husiness irauet M 1,118 trom milos €l Q% Tir 1,604 4,672 4,260
Emploracs commuling
o campany fusl card
Empioyae commuting fe] 1.307 counled Inscope | a5 100% 1,163 2,337 6,306 4,260
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broken aut
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(1) Emissions data for 2021 exclude 21,899 TCOZ2e from the Infrastructure Services operating unit which was disposed of in
the year and presented as a discontinued operation in these financial statements,
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Reasons for Change in Emissions

Carbon emissions conlinue to drop from our 2010 base line and gond progress has been made reducing carbon inlensity
through 2 range of carbon paolicics and initiatives across the Company. Carbon reduction bs a steategic focus of the
Company's 2024 business plan, and a six-point action plan has been implemented Lo accelerale emission reduction.

Skanska’s Low Carbion Fuel policy was fully implenented during 2022 with 91% of our site fuel being sustainability
sourced HVO up from 49% in 2021. The use of HVO avolded 8.4001TCO%¢e in scape 1 Greenhouse (ases (GI{G) emissions
during the period. 1n 2022 Skanska UK won innovation funding to develop and trial hydregen dual fuel technolopy
retrofitied to one of the Company's Piling rigs. [nitial testing has been successfuf and full site triafs of bydrogen dual fuel
technology in a full consiructing sile cnvironment wre plimined Jor 2003,

Significant pragress has been made with the roll out ot its Blectric Pirst Company Car policy in 2022 with the tolat number
of tull Batiery Electric Vehicles (BLVs) surpassing the conhined total of traditional dicse! and pewrol fuctled vehictes. By
the end of 2022, BEV vehicles made up 34% of the fleet (2021 5 19%) and the cmission averapge was S1g CO2/km (2021 ¢
70g CO2/Akm). Furthermore, 4% (41% 2021) of the Neet was clussified as Ulira Low Emission Vehicles. The Electric First
Company Car poiicy complements the company s fTexible warking st green travel allowance policies representing savings
in both direet business travel and indirect stalT commnting emissions.

Quantification and Reporting Melhodulogy

Skanska UK is certified 0 ISO14064-1:2018 under the Carbon Reduce scheme. UK Governnienl publications and the
(ireenhouse €as Protacol guide our eniission quantification wnd reporting. In 2022, Skhunska UK achicved Platinum
certification through the Carbon Reduce sclieme recapnising 12 years of year-on-year carbon reductions across our direct
crtissions, We are proud of this achievement but continue to work towards our overall goal of net zere entission acrass atl
GHG scopes hy 20435,

Skamska UK reports estimnates for some areas of scope 3 emissions associted with the activities of our supply chain across
all our projects. This is an activity spend based assessement and we continue to improve the data on these emissions so we
can rmore accurately target reductions initiatives with our custoters irowgth the supply chain.

Organisational Boundary

Skanska UK uses the financial cantrol appreoach and 1V emissians are included on an equity share ba

Base Year

2610 is our chasen hascline year which is the first year of formal emission reponting under the Carbon Reduce scheme.

Externnl Assurance Statement

Emission reports are gudited annually o a reasathle level of assurance and dociusents supporting tis certificstion can be
found at htps Awww oitn.co.nz/our-membersfmembgrs

Carbon Qffsets

The Giroup has not purchased any carhon ofTsets in (he period.

Great People

[n 2022, we started implementation of our Business Plan 2024, The 3-ycar plan outlines the UK’s approach (o delivering the
Skanska Group Strategy. We started the business plun period in a position of strenpth and the plan enables us to build on the
strong plarform of robust operating systems, polieics and processes thal have been developed over the previous business plan
periods. A eritical platform arca of the business plan is the people and cultere action plan, which has three core focus arcas.
Leadership and culture, skills and capabilitics and best employee experience. Delivery of these srcas will enable us (o continue
ter build an inclusive, values-driven, and peclormunce-based culture.

Our future direction is {irmly linked to our core belicls. Our purpose, we Build for a Better Socisty and otir orpanisational
values - Care for Life. Act Ethically and Transparently, Be Retter Together and Commit o Customers — rentain unchanged
and underpin everything we do, forming the foundations of e business plan. We recognise that we cannot snceced without
e and that buthding for @ better sociely ix more than just what we do, but atso how we do it In 2022 we embedded our
Hiving our values’ behaviours! frumework Lo support the delivery of the plan. The Living our Yalues framework ensures that
alk employees are clear in the bohaviowrs necded to support Skansha’s strenpths. drive pur enablers, and deliver our business
plan. Tt reptaced our previous behavioural framework. the Skanska Leadership Profile.

We cncourape our people to share in the success of the Group by participating in SEOP, the Skanska employee awnership
progiam. In 2022, 34% of our employees chose te invest in the Skanska Group through SEOP participation (2021: 34%4).
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Recruitment

The Group welcomed 775 (2021: 656) new stariers of which 234 (30.2%) identified as female (2021: 29%) and 189 (24.4%)
identified as from ethnic minority backgrounds (2021: 23.6%). We wlsa saw over 250 internal epplicants {ind new roles acrass

the group (2021: 500).

Application numbers increased to nearly 24,000 (2021: 20,000), for just over 1000 vacancies (2021: nearly 1,400). Our
pipeline of external vundidstes remained strong, and Lo ensure this conlinues we have been working with an external agency
on our IImployce Value Propusition, which will be introduced in 2023, This aims to reflect and develop the new brand

proposition, which was introduced in 2022,

Carcers and development

In 2022, we introduced our new suite of leadership programmes which were redesigned in 2021 to align Lo the new business
plan. There are 4 programmes which aim to provide developmenl at each siep of an employee’s leadership carcer journey.
from supervision to first-time line management, managing managers, and finally transformational leadership. We continued
to build the resources within our online e-learning platform, Skanska Academy, which is accessible to all employees,

OGur annual pertormance znd development review process formally includes both an end of year and a mid-year discussion, In
2022 we reiterated guidance to managers to cxtend their discussions beyond employee porformance against set goals and
behavioural expectations, to include conversalions on work lile balance, flexible working, mental healih, ant career aspiration,
The annual eycle is recorded within our online system, Skanska Talent. The living our values framework was used within this

process [or the first time, helping 1o embed it as a tool for all employees.

Dur personal development portfolio is very comprehensive, demonstrating our commilment to both technical training and
management development, This commitment provides the Group with the highest levels of employce competence, together
with the strongest calibre of people and business leadership, We collaborate with leading business schools both in the UK and
imternationally to provide our leaders with leading edge and stimulating development and growth. By developing and
promaoting from within, whercver possible, we develop much of the leadership talent we will need for the future internally.
An example is our Design Maougement Academy, which is a support and learning framework providing access to guidance,
key reference material and training to all those involved in the management of design within Skanska. Established in 2020,
the academy continues to provide world-leading conlent and best practice to our employces.

Our Talent and Succession process is run annually, with quarterly interventions ensuring regular progress is made in managing
and developing key talent. In 2022, we discussed leadership talent, but also inciuded a focus on high potential and diverse
talent to ensure our internal talent pipeline was well undersicod. We use robust psychometric assessments deployed by
professjonally trained internal and external assessors to validate potential, with assessed employees having their own targeted
development plan, sllowing them to continually grow their skills and accelerate their careers within the organisation. During
2022, over 120 infernal asscssments were completed by our in house British Psychological Society accrediied assessor, with
a further 50 compleled by our exiernal pariners. We also introduced a niew step o the process wherchy the asscssor and
employee develop a personal tafenl biography, to cnable ¢larilty on the employees’ career next steps and development arcas,

which ean be shared more widely in the organisation.

A key area of focus in the business plan is our ability to *learn fast’ from one another.  This forms another of our significant
change areas and will establish a way for the organisation to sharc and cmbed critical knowledge and learning quickly,
unlocking the full power of Skanska’s expericnce and skills. Scene setting and basic learning in support of Learn Fast was
delivered in 2022, with a plan to deliver further process and system changes in 2023,

Inclusion and Diversity

Our inclusion and diversity (1&D) vision is all about delivering high performance by enabling everyone to bring their whole
self i work. Woe are clear Lhat cveryene should be treated wilh dignity and respect within the workplace, and in 2021 we
commissioned a research study facilitaicd by an external company, called Your Lived Experience’, 1o find out how pcople in
Skanska UK felt about inclusion, and to identify the ways that people from different groups and backprounds experience our
culture. Foliowing the research, workshops took place with our Exccutive Managemeat Teamn and other senjor leaders across
Skanska to understand the repart and to be clear upon how being more inclusive will support delivery of our business
objectives. Cicar strategic narratives aboul why inclusion is impartant to each business area was created as an oulcome. In
2022, we continucd this work through a strong action plan. ‘We continue this focus intn 2023 with a new action plan.

We continued to focus on our [&1) governance, to ensure inclusive strategic decision making, leadership and behaviours are
embedded across the business.  Gur 1&D leaders’ group (made up of the CEQ and representatives from senior leadership,
HR, and our cmployee network icads) and a working group (I&1) leads with departmental responsibility) came together three
limes (o share and learn from oue another. Specifically, witliin the leaders® group, we focus on creating an environment for
the two-way sharing of perspectives belween network leads and senior leaders. We alse intreduced an eperations working
group in 2022, where employees working on 1&D at site leve] can learn from one another and share best practice.
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To provide [urther insipht alungside the Your Lived Experience project, we anafyse data from our pulse and engagement
surveys, alongside “business as usual® processes such as recruitment and perfonmance reviews, This helps us develop a 360-
degree view of the differences in the responses of different demographic graups,

We introdoved three new learning programmes 1o support our Your Lived Experience work. Al membars of our senior
nunagement leant were matched with an employee {rom one of outr employee networks, in our co-mentoring programme, The
aien of this programme is 1o enable senior leaders to further understand diiTerent lived experiences and be equipped to create
an inctusive cullure within their teams. In addition, we introduced two programimes direcled al our site colleagues enabling
and supporting them to lead by example. Firstly, u site leadership programme, called Catalyst, which focuses on enabling our
site leaders to recognise and act on avn-inclosive behaviours, Sccondly an active by stander programme tor our site leaders’
direct reports, 50 that they cen recegoise non-inclusive behaviour und be empowered 1o act where necessary, The purpose of
these programmies is 1o provide education und support 10 our managers who we know can make the biggest difference. We
will formally cvaluale the impact ol these programmes in 2023,

We continucd to promote our “Flex-it” framewark which aims to pravide all employees witly informal flexibility about where
and when they work. This iy a key 1o creating and implententing new ways of working thatl relleet our changing limes and
circumstances and is fundamental to making the construgtion imdustry attractive (o all. We reiterated our decision not 1o
impose business wide expettations on working pattems. but rather 10 enshle tenms 1o [ind suitable paterns of work 10 deliver
business priorities alongside cnabling individual noeds o he nccommndited. (o a 2022 pulse survey, 63% af women
responded to say they had a flexible working agreement in pluce, swhich works for their nceds, up from 43% in 2021, Flexible
working can be uscd lo accommadate nol only childeare and family requirements but also (o support employees with their
development and persanal needs.

People engagement
We remaein focused on creating and maintaining high levels of people enpagement and enahlement.,

in 2022 we conlinued opportunities for two-way commnication through regnlar CEO “all hands® hriglings, leadership ‘talk
time" sessions, and regular employee surveys. We extended our CHO ealls 1o alsp include other members of nor Executive
Management Team, W increase leadership visibility. 1hese ealls enable cur eraployees to ask *live’ questions, and we {ollowed
up after the cvents to ensure all queries were shswered.

The feedback we received through these inferventions heiped shupe our plans, including the introduction of » financial
wellbeing supporl programme (salary lnance) and signilicant changes to our family (riendly benefits.  In 2023, we
substantinlly increascd (hic support avaifable to new parents and carers. Maternity leave was enhanced to 26 weeks fully paid
leave, paernily leave has been increased to cipht weeks fully paid, which can be taken in one-week blocks over the 12 months
from birth or placement of the child. Parental bereavement leave has been extended to twa weeks paid feave, and dependants
leave is now one-week paid leave. In 2023 Skanska will review additianal micasdres (o Stppoit pew parents relurming to work,
in terms of thosc accessing the financial wellbeing suppert, we saw nearly 700 colleagoes visit the platform, aver 100
applications for support were reeeived and ncarly 200 salary advances processed fn the Sour munths sinee launch.

Market Maling

The Graup’s business plan 2624 is to achieve profitable revenue by deploying a markel penctration strategy that is achicved
through a customer centric approach.

The Group undertakes an ongeing asscssment of the investment appetite at both seclor level and at the level of the sustamer
to determine the scale of the realisahle markel. 'This assessment determines the projected dermand for the core capabilities of
those products and services where the Group has a proven track record of suceesslul delivery. Combining this with an
assesstent of the competitor enviroament infonins the Group of the addressable markel capable of being, realised.

To maximize market share in its chosen sectors, the Group sceks to he the nimnher ane most respected, as measured by our
customers. To achieve this outcome the capabililics ol the Group in delivering s prent cusiomer experience continue to develop

in the following arcas:

»  Insight driven change through measaring the customer experience.

» Investing in the proeesses and 1ools that cnable our peaple to provide a greal costomer experien
=  Refiring the approach w customer enpagement.

e  Creating a customer cenlric cullure.

*  Driving customer experience perlormance.

"The values uf the Group are assessed through the custonier measurement programme. This continues to inform that the Geoup's
values provide a ditferentiator 1o customers and that these are a desirable part of the offer Lo the markel. To Lhis end, the
strategic alipnment of existing and future customers is assessed with the Group’s own valucs. Where there is a close alignment
of shared valucs, there is evidunce of repeal business with fhose cusiomers.

For the vear 2022, mitigation measures for the evenis ol the war in Ukralne and the incldence of high and rising inNation
¥ £ 4 £
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Market NMaking (continned)

required the Graup to continue to apply an appropriate risk management approach. For both events the Group’s market shategy
has proven to be resilient where the oullook conlinues to be stronger than the general markel in which the Group operates.

The Group conlinues to apply strong risk management precedures at both corporate and project level. This ensures we select
the right projects that will continue 10 deliver the expectations of our customers and shareholders.

tiarly contractor involvement

Demand continues to increase among the Group's custorers for help with designing functional and cosi-saving solwtions.
Ieining a project at an carly stage aids the Group. in carly identification and management of risk with its eustomers, as well ag
in helping customers be more successful in their core businesses, This is 4 procurement route that we increasingly demand

during our opportunity seleclion phase.

Operational Efficiency

We remain focused on impreving the operational efficiency of our business, especially construction projects. This means
enabling project teams 1o deliver their coniracts faster and al lower cos! throughout the whaole project life cycle.

We do this by:
Improving productivity through
«  Rapid adoption of new digital ways of working
¢ Deployment of Innovation and modern methods of construction through our specialisl expertise
*  Coordination and prioritisation of productivity improvement opportunities
Managing our supply chain to
*  Obtain best value from the right supply chain, enabling them 1o achieve maximum productivity
s Ensure collaboration for supplier innovation and decarbonisation
s Achieve efficient and sustainable procurement and supply chain processes
Providing Engineering consuitancy services to
s  |mprove the efficiency of construction through a siroag wnderstanding of our customers’ needs
=  [Increase the provision of speciatist technical expertise in our construction projects
=  Manage engineering related Risk and Opportunity

The Group has identified praject productivily as an area that, by undergoing a significant transformation over the next Business
Plan period, can help us achieve our business objectives. We are focusing on the adoplion of technolegy and the exploitation
of data te improve our project productivily. An iniliative is ongoing to deliver the skills, tools, and processes to improve project

productivity.

We have successfully retained ISO19650 BIM Level 2 certification at Group level, which certifies our business as being
capable of colluboraling with project team stakeholders digitally. This is a requirement an all publicly funded projects. We are
also accredited to [SOS56000 at Group level. This standard certifies (hat we have a suitable {framework 1o implement, maintain,
and improve Innovation Management Systems. "This accreditation supports our Group cfforts to collaborate with our customers

to improve the quality and value from their projecis.

Leoking ahead we will continue to focus on the weli-being of our people and our supply chain. We will sirengthen the
relationships with our key supply chain through increased communicalion, closer collaboration, and ethical and transparent

behaviours.
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Compliance with the Modern Sfavery Act 2015

The Group is cotmmitied 1o ensuring all its business operations are free from jnvolvement with slavery or huntan vrafficking.
and we seck 1o ensure this through engagement with our own employees at management sad project level and with membcers
of the supply chain through aur Sustainable Procurement Policy. We want to ensure satety for all and engage as a fair and
ethical business with all our stakeholders, Building on owr established platform we will integrate our Madern Slavery work,
making i business as usual.

The Skanska Cede of Conduct and Skanska Supplier Cade of Conduct include express provisions lor Fair Working Conditions,
bascd an the Universal Decluration of Human Rights. the conventions of the nternalional Labour Organisation and the UN's
Guiding Principles on Busingss and [Human Rights. The Code of Conduct tequires employees (o treat each other with respeet
and dignity and to raise concemy abioul unlir working conditions. The Supplier Code of Conduct extends these principles to
sub-contractors and supplicrs,

The Group ensures ihere is enhianced modemn slavery educarion and awarencss through our external Supply Chain
Sustainabiiity School with procirement gnidance notes and toolbox talks for projects and conlracts being made available 10
the School™s 80,000+ members,

Skanska's Modern Slavery and Human Trafiicking Stalement, which pravides grealer detail on our approach to the eradication
of these issues from our business and our supply chain, ix published via a link on the honepage of our website, This updated
policy was approved by the Boimd of Dircetors of the Company on 21st June 2023, 1 is reviewed and published on an aunual
basis.

Market & Quilook

In 2022 we booked £1.5 billign of orders and supported hy £441.5 million of cash with no leverage of debt, the Group remains
in a strong position. We remain mindful of the market conditions driven by the wider economic and geo-political challenges
and continue to work proaciively with both our customers and supply chain ta monitor and mitigate headwinds in commodity
and energy costs to pratect the financinl periormance of e Business in (e shorl, medinm, and long-term.

Section 172 Companies Acl 2006

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 Tequires o Liircetar of a Company 1o act in the way they consider, in goed faith, would
mast likely promote the success of the Company Tor the benefii of its members as a whole. In doing this, seclion 172 requires
Directors te have regard to, amongst other matters, the:

- likely consequences of any decisions in the long-lenn.

- interests of the Company's emplovees:

- need 1o foster the Company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and othuors,

- impact of the Company's operations an the community and environment.

- desimbility of the Company maintaining a reputation for hiigh standards of business conduct; and

- need Lo a¢l fairly as between manbers of the Company.

In discharging our section 172 dulies we have regard to the matiers st o abave, [n addition, we also have regard (o other
factors which we consider refevant 1o the decision being, made. By considering the Company's purpose. vision and values
together with its strategic privrities and having a process in place for decision making, we aim 1o make sure that our decisions
arc consistent and predictable,

We delegate authority for day-to-rlay managenient of the Company to seaior leadership teams und then engage management
in selting, approving and oversecing execution of the husiness strategy and related policies. Board meetings are hebd regularly
in which the Directors consider the (ompany's aclivitics and make decisions, As a pant ol those mcelings the Directors receive
information in & range of different Tormais to ensure that they have regard o section 172 matters when making relevant
decisions.

The Company’s key stakeholders are its workforee, customers, supplices and the local communitics in which it eperates. The
views of and the impact of the Compuny's activities on those stukehobders are an important consideration for the Directors
when making retevant decisions, The size and spread of both the Company's stakeholders and the Skanska Group muans that
gencrally our stakcholder engagement takes place at an operatianal and Group level. We find that as well as being @ more
efficient and effective approach, this also helps us achieve a greater positive impact on envirenmentzal, social and other issues
than by waorking afone as an individual Company. For details ol the cngagement which takes place with the Group's
stakeholders please sce page 17,

The Wates Corporate Gevernanee Principles for Large Private Companies provides a framework for the Group to not only
demeonstrate how the Board makes decisions for the long-terin success of the Company and its stakeholdess {see Principle 6 —
Stakehwolders, of the Corporale Governance Report within these Financial Statements). but also having regard to how the Board
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Section 172 Campanies Act 2006 {(continued)

cnsurcs the Group complies with the requircrments of section 172 of ithe Companics Act 2006, Our reporing against Ihe Wates
Principles has been included on pages 14 1o 9.

We scl out below an example of how we have had regard to the matters sct out in section 172¢1)¥a)-(N when discharging our
section 172 duty and the effect of that on decisions taken by us:

Throughout 2022. the Board will continue to review and challenge how the Group can improve engagement with its employccs
angd stakeholders.

On behaif of the baard:

M Duymaz O
Date: 3 August 2023
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Statement of Corporaie Governance arvangements

For the year eaded 3151 December 2022, under The Companies {Miscellancous Reporting) Regulations 2018, the UK Group
has applied the Wates Corporute Governance Principles for Large Private Companics (published by the Financial Reporting
Couscil (FRC) in December 2018 and aviilable or the FRC websile)

The disclosures below cxplain how the Group has applied these principles in the context of its corporale governance
arrangemens.

Principle F — Purpose and Lradership

As one ol the UK's leading contractors. Skanska is an inclusive and responsible husiness that is helping to build for a better
socicty. Knawn for major projecits across the country, we are building. apgrading and maintaining the counhy's infiastrucinre.

Drawing on our Scandinavinn heritage, we are green, innovative and values-driven. We bring together people mud technology,
as part of our quest to make construction a sifer sud more collaborative indosty.

Purpose

The Group’s putpose and mission is to buikl for a betlar society, What we do and how we do it contributes o a sustainable
Tuture for our people, cur customess and for the communities iy which we operale. We deliver our purpose through a variety
of prajects and innovalive, sustainabie sofutions. It is abmn what we do as well as how we do it. Weaim 1o lead in health and
safety, cthics, green, inclusion and diversity and community investment - our Sustainahility arcas - and we do that through
our commitment, passion, and expertise. ' his creates greater shared value For our people. for society and for Skanska.

Values and Culture

The Group's four core values are: care for life: act ethically & transparently: be better  together: and commil to customers.
Oup values express our moral fToundations and ¢ompass, They express who we are, how we bebave and what we believe in,
and help vs in our day-1o-day work, Our values Jead to business benefits {pupe 4) and living our values will make us successful.
Actions Ihat are not in line with, or may jeopardise, our values are not accepted.

We strive to create value for our sharchiolders and to have o positive impact on society. We don’t believe it is about daing one
or the other; it is aboul doing both a1 the same time, Profit is needed to deliver on our purpose and a strong, purpose will
contribute to profit. Gvery project should boil: be prolitable and delivered in line with the Skanska values and our ambition to
be a leader within Sustainability. The Group's operations consist of cunstruction and related activities, Operating units within
several streams collaborate in various ways. creuling vperational and financinl synergics that generate increased value,

The Skanska Code of Conduct delines ow all Skanska employees should work. The nim of the Code is to provide clear
direction {or everyday behaviour. helping us ta live our values and maintain our position as a safe, ethical and sustainable
business. Our aim is 1o ensure all prajects reflect our purpose and ar¢ not only profilable but are delivered withow cthical
breaches and with a transparent and inclusive culture.

Peopic arc at the heart of our husiness: we aim 1o create an inclusive cullure with an environment where employces can be
themselves and be the best they can be. We ofTer our employees opportunilies 1o develap and learn. The Group sets a culture
based on transparency, values, and high performance. with emplaoyees working together towards common goals. This culture
is embedded through senior managemenl engagemen!, performanee reviews, reward stroctures, as well as baining and
induction. We monilor the efTectiveness of this culture and conenunication through staff surveys, exit intervicws and feedback
sessions with managers.

Strategy

In Uhe first halt of 2022, the Group entered its next planning cyele and Enched Business Plan 2024 across the business, Al
the core of the Business Plan remains Skanska's fong-term purpose and vatues, The Plan was built on a market penetration
stralegy, aimed at increasing, our share of work in owr mest seecess{ul sectors and growing revenues wilh existing customers.
Along with a challenging sct of financial arpes. the putcome of Business Plan 2024 is to make propress against our ambition
o become Lhe moslt respected construction company in the UK.
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Stratepic objectives

The Group's Laser Focus Plan, launched in 2017, was intended to ensurc that tender margins are met or exceeded on every
contract. 1! focuses on strategic objectives in five key areas:

Right people — Making sure we use objective, performance-based information based on evidence when we appoint people to
key project positions, This is strategically important because people in these pivotal roles will be taking values-driven decisions
wlhiich sipgnificantly affect the successful delivery of projects, he key objective is to collect factual information about our
projects and our employees”™ performance and then to make sure we use it to drive a successful, diverse and collaborative
organisation enabling the best opportunity to achieve profit with purpose.

Design control - Design control covers everything about how we assess, manage and deal with project design. This is critically
important for the success of our prejects and has a significant impact on our clients and our profitability. We have recognised
that carly collabaration with our pariners on design in an open but conlrolled environment gives e best chance ol success.
This relates to all parts of a project from tender and procurement through to delivery and handover,

Understanding and applying the deal - This is about knowing the coniract, acting on that knewledge and recognising the
commercial impact it has on our stakeholders as well as upon ourselves. A collaboralive, no surprises environment is the goal
ensuring all parties are able 1o achieve their financial and operational objectives.

Quality — We recogpise that the cost of “Iack of quality™ is a burden to any consiruction business through the subsequent
rewark of design and delivery. Therefore, this ebjeclive is about cnsuring a “right first time”™ mentality is driven through all
areas of Ihe Business. Using recognised and professional techniques through to sharing best practice and empowering our
employees to innovate is ai the heart of the objective. A clear and realistic plan that can be actioned and measured is key (o

each part of any project.

Forecasting and reporting — It is fundamenlal that reporting needs to be accurate, transparent and consistent across the Group.
This alse allows for more accurate forecasting, empowering the business to be able to understand the opportunitics available
to it and the challenges it aces. The rollout of new project valuation systems alongside training and support for project teams

has been vital in achieving this objective.

By focusing on the strategic objectives in these key areas in the shori-term, increases profitability, and in the long-term,
increascs stakeholder value and sustainability. These are monitored through margins achicved on projects as well as employce

appraisals and customer surveys.

For the Laser Focus Plan o be successful, we need to: base our decisions on fact and realism; scrutinise effectively; learn from
success and failure; address under performance and do what we say we would do. At their core is the Skanska culture - - values
driven, open and transparent, striving to be better - together. This in turn helps to advance the Group's purpose of building for

a hetter society.

Principle 2 — Board Composition

The beard is made up of the Executive Management Team (EMT) which is led by UK President and CEO, Katy Dowding
{who took over the role from Gregor Craig who retired in May 2023), supporicd by six Executive Vice Presidents. The board
comprises a balance of skiils, buckgrounds, experience, and knowledge, with each individual making a valuable coniribution,

The average tenure of the board is six years.
The EMT is responsible for setting the stratepic direction, values, ethics, and purpose across the Group,

The sizc of the board is considered sufficient for the strategic needs and challenges faced by the organisation and enables
effective decision making. The composition and performance of the board is cvaluated on a regular basis by the management

of its ultimate parent company, Skanska AB,

Principle 3 — Directors' Responsibilities

Accountability

Each board member has a clear understanding of their responsibility and accouniability. The corporate governance framework
ensures that Skanska is managed sustainably, responsibly and efficiently on behalf of all stakeholders. The putpose of corporate
govemance is also to ensure oversight of the Group by the EMT and management. By having a clearly defined governance
structurc as well as proper policies and procedures, the board can ensure thal management and employees are locused on
developing the business and thercby generating sharcholder value and having a positive impact on socicty.

The board usually meets twice a month and additionally us required.
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Accountability {(continued)

The EMT delegates authority for day-to-day management of the Group to the Senior Management Team (SMT), which it has
oversight of, and which is made op of individaaly with the appropriate knowledge, gualifications and jpdustry experience 1o
carry out their roles. The SMT comprises members who are responsible for specific operations and functions, which enables
effeclive and efficient decision making. The Group has a delcgation of sulhority policy which clearly delails what decisions
can be delegated and to whom. including any financial limits. In some instances, Skanska 11Q) approval is also required sbove
the EMT levels of authority.

Integrity of information

The EMT reccives regulai and timely information an all key aspeels of the business including Sustainahility, health and saloty,
apportinities, risks, lnancial perfonnance. strategy, operations, order bookings and uther key performance indicators.

Information is reported from the Group®s uperational, commercial and aceounting systems. The emplayess involved are
appropriately qualified o ensure te integrity of this informalion and are provided with the necessary training to keep up o
date with any regutatory changes, Financial conirols are regularly and roulinely reviewed by the uliimate parent company’s
internal andit function.

Principle 4 — Oppoettunity and Risk

The EMT aims to promote the lonp-term sustainable suceess of the Group by identifying opportunitics to create and preserve
value and by establishing oversight for the identification and mitigation of risks,

Opportunity

For our copstuction eperations, several faciors have a significant beating on the cventual autcome ol the project, including
type and size, where it is located, how the contruet and delivery approach are structured sind tre relationship with the customer,
The Group has procedures and taols to manage risk and to deliver the Group's business plan. This platform provides a strug-
tured and efficient means of maximising profitahility and achicving the business plan. T builds on the Group's findumentals
of focusing on core project types and the understanding of fts customers and markets,

As parl of our Laser Focus Plan, the goal is that every project st il or beat tender margin. delivering an operating margin
of 3.5% or greater, There are five work streams which fave been prioritised as they will fve most impact o improving, owr
financial performance: the right people; desipn conlrol; understanding and applying the deal; quality; forecasting and reporting.

We only bid nn projects in arcas which we huve a proven track record of success and which delivers 1 3.5% or greater operating
margin. In onder o identify these projects, we continususly monitor seetors we carrently operale in from both a finaneial gnd
performance perspecetive whilst also assessing the potential future opportoaitics. From time to lime this evaluation protecol is
also extended to newly emerging sectors. Combining these elenients topether has given us 1 good understanding of the projects
we should bid for.

As parl ol the Laster Focus Plan, the ~Qualily of Scrutiny” prepranime was imtreduced, an initiative undentaken by the Group
1o further enhance our abilities in scrutinising amd managing projects. In order o improve our perfonmance and achicve a high
level of aperational stability, we scrutinise and revisit continuously how we wark with the estimating, planning, project
exceulion, bid selection. risk assessment, administrative and support funclions.

Risk

The way in which risk management is dealt with across the Group is set out in the Skanska Group Enlerprise Risk Manapement
Information Policy. ‘I'he enterprise risks are classificd in four catepories: strategic; operational; financial: and regulatory, The
Group’s approach 10 risk is governed by Skanska AR, the ultimate parent company, who have identified the malerial risks in
its operations thal may, if not monaged correcily, lead W errors in finaneial reporting and/or have an impacet on the Company™s
performance results. Skanska AR's Group Leadership Team and its core funclions arc responsible for managing general risks
refating {0 stratepy, macrocconmuics, and 1epulatory funeworks, while the main tasks elling to operational risks and
opportunities are carricd out at the local level within its individual business units,

The EMT reviews the Company's Enterprise Risk Register on a quarterly basis. This enables the board Lo menitor and assess

risks at a lacal level and consider whether these are in line with the ultimate parent company 's assessed risks at a global level,
The principal risks for the Group are set out within the Stratepic Report (page 33

1é
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Responsibilities

The EMT has established an internal control framework with clearty defined roles and responsibilities for those involved. The
Skanska UK policics, procedures and guidelines provide the basic rules and instructions to provide a clear strocture fur the
business aperations and they represent current best practice,

Principfe S — Remunerntion

At Skanska. g high-performance culture supported by appropriate remuncration and an award-winning employee development
pregramme is crilical to the delivery of individual and business objectives, This culture is driven by the alipnment of clear and
challenging responsibitities and ensuring that employecs are aware of how their work impacts the Group.

Skanska stands by the principle of “equal pay for equal work™. Accordingly, decisions relating to remuneration are never
influenced by discriminatory factors. Funhermore, Skanska adopts the Grandparen( Principle for any remuneration decisions.
To ensure fair and abjective remuneration, approval is required from the line munager and the line manager’s manager.

The remuneration of the CEQ is approved by the Skanska AB cempensalion committee, and external benchmarks are ysed in
the seiting of this. Remuneration of board members is approved by the CEO of Skanska AB in line with the requirements of
the Skanska AB Compensation Committee.

The annual bonus plan for the CEQ and other board members is based on two facters: profitability; and performance against
a small number of strategic meusures. Turgets for both areas are set annually. The annual strategic measures are aligned with
the three areas of the “Profit wilh Purpose” initiative — Great People, Operational Excellence, and Markel Making.

Principle 6 — Stakeholder Relationships and Enpagement

The EMT is elear that good governance and effective communication are critical to the Group's success. These factors enable
us to deliver our purpose within our communities, and to protect the Group’s brand, reputation and relationships with our
stakeholders and our ultimate parent, Skanska AR,

OQur Commaunities

The Group s committed te providing a sustainable future for its people, customers, and communities. The Group’s work
makes a clear contribution te seciety and to the environment. We are committed to supporting the communitics in which we
operate, and throeugh our struclured approach lo communily invesiment we provide our time, skills, and gifts in kind to leave
a positive legacy wherever we work. Qur focus is on strengthening local economics and championing education in our arcas
of expertise. We believe this is where we can have the greatest influence, and it dirzctly supporis our purpose io build for a

better society.

Our projects may Jast for several years in construction and are designed to {ast for many years after thal, We are committed to
maintaining and improving the environment on our siles and in surrounding areas. We have a tcam of more than 70
covironmental professionals whe provide advice and support to our business angd projects. This includes delivering on legal
compliance, helping cur customers to meet their own green ambitions, and delivering environmental management that goes
above and beyond slatutory requirements, including our plan 1o operate with net-zero carbon emission Ievels by 2045.

Stakeholder Relationships and Engagement

The EMT pramoles accountabilily and transparency willi its internal and external stakeholders. An open and ongoing dialogue
with stakeholders is a key component in day-to-day operations and iong-term planning. This provides important jnsights
regarding their needs, expectations, and challenges,

The EMT continues to seek tn align the Group’s strategic direction with its pirpose to build for a better society as well as
Skanska's long-term sustainability goals of being o responsible business leader in health and safety, ethics, green, Inclusion
and diversity and community investment, focussing on scaling vp climate solutions, and developing all our projects 10 ensure
a high level of resilience, The EMT are the primary communicators between the Group and its ultimate parent company.

One of the Group's core values is Commit to Customers. By better understanding our customers™ needs, we aim to provide
innovative and indusiry-leading solutions. Relationships with our customers ave most productive when we are involved in
project planning at an early stape. This allows us to establish and work together towards coninon aims snd provides the best
cnvironment for us to add valuc for them and for their stakeholders. We work on a variety of contracts including those in joint
venlures, on frameworks and in partnerships, depending on the projeet requirements and the customer. The EMT has set the
foundations for an initiative to become better cogaged and connected with customers. This includes “Customer Insights ond
Measurement™ whicl: is s structured customer satisTaction measurement programme nsing Net Promoter Score.

During the year the EMT reccives updales on key customers including any current or potential issues. Each member of EMT
will meet vegutarly with customers - being visible, open and collaborative is key o our success. Whether it is sharing best
practice, discussing success on a projeet or resolving challenges, the suceess of this engagement cannot be underestimated.
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Stakehalder Relatinnships and Engagement {continued)

Each EMT maember is also a direct contributor to professionat bedies and associations that shape and give thought leadership
lo our industry. This interaction aims to keep the Group at the torefront of fnnovation, forward-thinking debate and
collaboration wilk all siakcholders. T he impact of this engagement can be seen from policy change through to challenging the
mindsets about mental health within the ndustry,

The Granp works closely with owr supply chain partners who are essential to our success. The EMT aims to build cullaborative
relationships 10 develop solutions that will drive down costs, manage risk and improve suslainability standards. The EMT have
implemented a structured retationship management and development prograsnme, which includes the [SO44001 standard. in
the wider industry, the Group is collabarating, with the other main contractors in order to help duliver tie UK government’s
Construction 2025 strategy targeis — 33% lower costs, 50% [aster build and 56 lower cmissions — as well as 1o support the
award-winning Supply Chain Sustainability School. The School now has over 85,000 repistered users from across the supply
chain who can improve their skills in sustainability competence.

The maiority of the Group's spend is with small- and mediumn-sized husinesses, which arc aften close 1o its project sites and
oflices - helping (o support local people and the ceonomy. The EMT is commiited o applying fair and transpurent payment
terms for its supply chain, supporting the national Construction Supply Chain Payment Charter and Promipt Payment Code,
which demonstrates its commitment to fair payment. The EMT strongly believes that fair zud transparent on-time payment is
essemial to good supply chain partner refationships and 1he delivery of successful projeats. In addition to this. the Group
supports several areas of its supply chain to undertake research ingd development,

The Group is commitied to munaging the wider social, environmental. and ceconomic impacts of its aperations which inchides
the way it engages and builds refationships with its cuslomners and manages sustainability. ‘The EMT is committed (o protecting
the environment and making a pusitive confribution to a more sustainahle world thraugh improving, the cnvironmental
performance of all our producls und services, sud actively working to minimise our pact on climate change. The EMT has
set Skanska UK's aim Lo be the Ieading green contractor and we conlinue to make progress against our target (o operate with
net-zero carbon emissions by 2045 and deliver against our averall environmental business plan,

Invesiment in people is a priosity for the Group, offuring employves {inctuding contractors) the opporhimity to develop and
feamn, either within their current role or in one o’ the cross-Skanska schemies 1o build petworks and improve collaboration. The
EMT engages with empioyees in a rumber ol ways throughout the year including recruitinent and on-hoarding platforms,
Company-wide conferences, roadshiows, development programnies and local communication events. Buitding on the new
avenues discovered during COVID-19, board and employee cogagement is maintained through several channels including
onlinc meetings, wellbeing surveys and live Company-witde updates including Q&A sessions with the CEQ.

Over the past few years, the EMT has taken steps 10 improve employee relations by launching moic interactive meetings,
improving financial, commercial and operationnl systems, expanding the range of employee henofits, encouraging more
flexible working practices and supporting wellbeing initiatives. An employee cnpagement survey, “Your Vuoice, Our Success”
(Y VOB8). is carried out annually to provide every employee with the opportunity to give input to improve Skanska and cnable
an approach for understanding strengths and developiient ateas. The EMT freats the results of the YVOS survey as an
important indicator ol the wosklorce's confidence in the Group's strategic dircction. Specific feedbuck is requested on how
employees helieve the EMT are performing and whether they are trustworthy and capable at leading the Business. Onee ugain,
{he resuits of this survey in 2022 demonstrated a high level of trust and beliel in the EMT.

Skanska’s Code of Conduct conncets all pants of the Group with Skanska’s values, strengihening the business. ‘The Code of
Conduct defines how all Skanska employces should work and interact with each otiier, customers and other stakeholders. New
employees are required lo complete Code of Conduct training on or belore thir first day at Skanska, with a mandatory refresher
course for all employees at twa-year intervals. Skanska employees are expected La take action, without fear ol recourse, if they
belicve that there has been a serious breach 1o the Code, far example, raud, thelt, bullying or health & safely violations. A
number of channels are available for any cmployee o raise potential concems, including anonynwously vin Skanska's Code of
Conduet hotline. Keports are investigaled by the Ethies Commitice and case ssiumarics are published internally for all
employtes to read.

The Group communicates reguiarly with the Trustees of its various defined benefit pession schemes, who are independent of
the Group. The Boards of Trusiees comprises individuals nominated by the respective pension scheme menibers and by the
Group. These relationships are key 10 ensuring that the decisions made by both the Group and the schemes reflect the interests
of all sizkeholiders.

The Company’s website (www skanska.co.uk), intranet and social media channels provide exiensive and up-to-date news on
recent developments.
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Principal decision-making
The Group recognises the importance of engaging with stakeholders to help inform strategy and EMT decision-making.

Relevant stakeholder interests, including those of employees, suppliers. customers, and other stakcholders are taken-into-
account by the EMT when decisions are made. 1n doing so, the EM) considers the oulcomes of relevant stakeholder

engagement as well as the need to maintain reputation and shareholder value.

On behalf of the board;

MDwgrmag

M Duyma. Oludipe - Director

Date: 3 Aupust 2023
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The Dircctors present their report with the linancial statements of the Company and the Greup for the yoar cnded
35t December 2022,

This Dircetors' Report should be read in conjunction with the Group Strategic Report, which shall be deemed to Form part of
this Dircctors' Report te the extent requtired hy applicable Low and regulations,

Principal nctivilies

The principal agtivity of the Group in the year under review was that of a constmction sctvices business with core activitics in
construction, civil engineering, piling aud ground engineering, design, mechanica! and electrical works. and hard and soft
facilitics management. Qur business model! is to integrate our core disciplines 1o deliver peajeet solutions across our clssen
market seclors,

Dividends

An interim dividend of £65.0 million {1.96%7p per share) in respect of the yeor ended 31st Decamber 2022 (2021 £16.1
mitlion, D4878p per siare) was distribuled 1o the ordinary shareholder on 6ih December 20622,

Futnre developmends

The Group will continue to focus on its new business plan in the vear whicli will set out onr direction {or the next several years
as well as continuing o focas o mitipation plans in respeet of domestic and global ceonomic conditions.

Directors
The Dircctors whe have held office during the period from st January 2022 1o the date of this report arc:

A M Mchonald (Appointed 2Znd May 2023)

C K K Gangotra (Resigned 29th July 2022)

(i L Craig (Resigned 2nd May 20123)

H I trancis

K M Dowding

M Duymaz OGludipe (Appointed 28th September 2022)
M G Neeson

S Paul

T P Faulkner

Directors® interests and transactions with Direclors

None of the Direetors as at 31t Deeember 2022 had any interests required (o he disclosed under Section 182 Compasties Acl
2006, There were no chunges in the Directors' interests between 318 Becemnber 2022 and the date of approving this report.
Nu Director during the vear hal an interest in any contract significant (o the Group's business.

Statement of corporate governance arvangements

From the 1st January 2018, under The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, the UK Group has applied
the Watces Corparate Governance Principies for Lacge Private Coampumies {pueblished by the Financial Reporting Council
{*FRC’) in December 2018 and available on the FRC website). They embrace the Group’s existing governanee framework,
which alrcady contained many ol the principles to satisly the new legislative requirements.

‘The Corporale Governgnee Report approved by the Board is provided on pages 14 (o 19,

Policy en payment of creditors

The Company and its subsidiary underiakings are responsible for agreeing the werms and conditions under which business
transactions with their supplicrs are conducted. it is Company palicy thal payments to suppliers are made in accordance with

these terms, provided that the supplicr is also compiying with all relevant werms and conditions. The Group's trade creditors at
3Ist December 2022 representzd 9.9 days’ purchases (2021 6.9 days).
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Research and Development

Innovation is important to enable Skanska to refain a leading market position, enabling the Group to provide the solutions
needed by customers, now and well into the future. Through innovation, Skanska identifics, develops, and apply new technical
products, services, and processes, increasingly working with ex(ernal partners. This focus — part of 1he 2024 business plan’s
Digital Productivily aspecl — generates enhanced value for Skanska’s shareholders and customers. Various internal networks
and communications platforms facilitate sharing knowledge across the Group.

Rescarch and development priority areas include Sustainabitity — including green and health and safety — and digitalisation.

Going concern

The Company’s Directors have considered the preparation of these financial stalements under the 'going concern’ basis, They
have eonsitered:

The quality, remaining duration and velume of constructien contracts held;
- The liquidity levels maintained by the business;

The principal risks and uncertaintics cutlined in the Gioup Strategic Report;
- The future forecasts for the Group.

In addition, we continue to assess the continuing impact of domestic political uncertainty and the continuing impact of the
Ukraine erisis on the business through addilional stress testing of the Group's budgets and forecasts, The stress testing has
considered the Group’s operational performance and cash flow based on a numbcer of scenarios in accordance with the impacts
on the wider economy, on our customers' markels and on our supply chain, looking at both the short- to medium-term. The
outcomne of which shows that the Group is expected to maintain positive cash Nows giving the Group the ability to conlinue

1o operate for the foreseeable future,

After considering the above points and making enquiries, the Directors have a reasongble expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the period from the date of signing these financial statements to
31st December 2024, Accordingly, they deem it approprialc o cantinue to prepare these financial statements on the going

concern basis.

Employment policies

The Dircctors recognise that employees are fundamental to the Group’s success and are commined o the invelvement and
development of cmployees at all levels, The Company is commitled to a policy of providing equal apportunitics for all,
regardlcss of race, religion, sex, or disability. The Company is commilted to training and management development, so-as-io

ensure a supply of trained and skilled employees.

To reflect society at large, the arzas in which the Company works, and its customer profile, the Company peeds ta increase the
diversity of its workforce in terms ol educational and oceupationa! background, gender, and cthnicity. Therefore, the Company
is broadening its recruitment base by allsching greater importance to these issues, Examples of our approach in this area
inciude the establishment of employee networks to give a greater voice o uader-represented groups, a mixed pair mentoring
programme, &nd a Returners programine which provides a supportive bridge back into employment for people who have been
out of the work arcna for reasons such as caring responsibilities or raising a family.

The Company places considerable value onthe involvement of its employees and has continued its previeus practiee of keeping
them infarmed on matters affecting them as employees and en the various factors affecling the performance of the Company
and the Skanska Group, This is achieved through formal and informal meetings, the intranet, and in-house publications.

The Directors ensure that employees or their representatives are consulted regularly on a wide range of malers affceting their
current and future interests.
Environment

The Company and its subsidiary underiakings are required to pursue policies that comply with the relevant legislation and
standards applicahle to their industries.

The Group’s Streamlined Bncrpy and Carbon Reporting can be found within the Strategic Report on page 7.

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptiludes of the applicant
concerned. In the event of members of stall becoming disubled every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the
Group continues and that spproprizte training is arranged, It is the policy of the Group that the training, carcer develapment
and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical with that of other cmployces.
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Pensions

O an LAS 19 basis, the Group's defined benelit pension schemes had a surplus of £63.7 million at 3 st Becember 2022 (2021
surplus of £5-1.0 miilion).

Total contributions paid into the main Skanska Pension Fund by the Group was £6.3 million (2021: £15.0 miilion).
Direelors’ indemnity provisions

In accordance with the Companies (Audit, lnvestipations and Community Eaterprise) Act 2004, as at the date of this report,
the articles ol association contined provisions for thisd-party qualilving indemnities where the Group has agreed Lo indemnily
the Directors in respect of losses arising oul of, or in connection with, the exceution of their duties and responsibilities as
Lircetors of the Company, and this was in force thraughout the linancial year ended 31s1 Decernber 2022,

Past halance sheet events

There have been no past balance shect events that require disclosure or adjustiment in these financial stenients.

Disclosure of inforniation to audilor

So far as cach person who was a Dircctor at the date ol approving 1his repoat is aware, there is noe relevant audit information.,
being information needed by the puditor In connection with preparing its report, of which the auditor is wnawsre. Having made
enquiries of fellow Directors and the Group's awditor, cach Dircelor has taken all the steps that he/she is obliged to take as o
Director in order to make himseli‘herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of
that information.

Auditors

1n accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditors, Erost & Youung LLP, will be pioposed for re-
appointment at the following Annpal General Meeting,

On behalf of the board:

M Duymaz. Oludipe - Directer

Date: 3 August 2023
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Group Strategic Repor, Dircctors’ Report and the financial stateniernds in
accordance with applicable law and repulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under that law the Directors have
elected to prepare the financial slatements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, Under Company law, the Directors must niot approve the financial statemenis
unless they are satisfied that they give a truc and fair view of the slate of affairs of the Company ond the Group and of the

profit or less of the Group for that pericd. In prepuring thuse Tinancial statements, the Directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8 "Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and

Errors" and then apply them consistently;

state whether applicable IFRS, in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, have been followed,
subject to any material depariures, disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and

Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adegquate accounting records thal are sufficient to show and explain the Company
and the Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any lime the Tinaneial position of the Company and the
Group and enable them to ensure thal the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for laking reasonable steps for the prevention and

detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Opinion

We have audited the finoncial statements of Skanska UK PLC (*the patent campany ) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 whicli comprise the Group Profit and Loss Account. the Group and Parent company Statement
of Financial Position, Group and Parent compatsy statement of cush flaws. the Group statement of comprehensive income. the
Group and Parent company siatement of changes in equity and the refated notes | to 35, including & summary of signiltcamt
aceounting policics. The Mnancial reporting ramework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
adopied international Accounting Standards and as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance
with section 408 of the Companics Act 2000.

In our opinion:

. the financial slatements give o true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company 's alfairs as at 31 December
2022 and of the group’s profit for the yeur then cnded:

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accerdance with UK adopted International Accounting
Standards;
. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adepted Interaationsl

Accounting Standards as applivd in accordance with section 408 af the Companivs Act 2006; and
. (he financial stalements have been preparedt in accordance with the requirements of the Compamies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordunce with Internationat Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur
responsibilitics under those standards are turther deseribed in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
slatements section of our reporl. We are independent of the proup in accordance will the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial sistements in the UK, including the IF'RCs Ethical Standard as applied 1o other entities of public
interest, and we have fulfilied our vther ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements,

We believe that the andit evidence we have sbiained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis lor our npinion.

Cantlusions relating to going concern

In suditing the financial statements. we have concluded that the Directors” use ol (he going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financil statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the group and parent
company’s ability tv conlinuc to adopt the going concern basis of accounting inchided:

e We assessed the risk around going concern in planning our audit and again at the year-cnd phase:

s We cenfirmed our understunding of the process followed by management to prepare the Group's going concemn
assessment, including assessing the inflation and supply chain impact of the engoing eonflict in Ukraine:

+  We obtained management's going concern assessment. including the cash flow Torecast for the going concern period
10 31 December 2024;

»  We identified and chatlenped (he key assumptinns undetfying managenient’s forecasts and msodels by chiecking to
corroborative evidence, We alse scarched lor contrary evidence 1o chalienge the assumptions;

»  We performed cur own sensitivity analysis on Ghe forecast in addition to sensitivity analysis performed by
management;

* W performed reverse siress lesling on the forecast prepared by management:

s We checked the logic and arithmnetical accuracy of the models develuped by manapement:

«  We assessed the accutacy of manapement forecasting by comparing forceasts made in prior periods 1o actual
aulcomes:

¢ We assessed the Group's right 1o sulTiciently access the cash held in the UK cash pooling arrangement;

»  We oblained a copy of the Group’s order book and vouched a sample of the population to contracted
revente; and

=  We assessed the accuracy and appropriateness of management’s disclogure in the Director’s Report and
the Going Concern basis of preparation note.
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Based on the work we have performed, we have not identificd any material uncertainties relaling (0 events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubl on the group and parent company’s abifily (o continuc as a going
concern for a period From when the financial statements are authorised for issue 10 31 December 2024,

Our responsibilities and the respansibilitics of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report. However. because not all future events or conditions can be predicled, this statement is not a guarantee as to the

group’s ability to continuc as a going concermn.

Other information

The ather information comprises the information included in the annual report. other than the financial siatements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other infurmation snd, except o the extent otherwise explicitly
slated in this report, we do not cxpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge oblained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such malerial inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives risc to a material missiatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is 8 material missiatement of the other informatian, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions an other matters prescribed by the Campanies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the werk undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the strategic report and the Directors™ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the strategic repori and Directars' repori have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to reper{ by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and ils ervironment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or Iirectors’ report.

We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, in our epinion:

adequate accounting rceords have not been kep! by the parent company, or relurns adequate for our andil heve nol been
received from branches nol visited by us; or

»  the parent company {inancial statements are not in agreement witls the accounting records and retumns; or

»  certain disclosures of Dircctors’ remuncration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have nol received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Dircctors’ respensibilities slalement sct out on page 23, the dircclors arc vesponsible for the
preparation of the financial statements und for being satisfied that they pive a troe and fair view, and for such internal conitrol
as the direclors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstaiement, whether duc to {raud or crror.

In prepating the financial statemunts, the dircctors are responsible for assessing (he proup’s and the parent company’s ahility
to continic as a poing concern, disclosing, as appiicablc, matters refated to going concern and using, the going concern basis
of accounting unless 1he direciors cither intend 1o liguidaie the group or the parent company or ta cease operalions, or have no
realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Auditar’s responsibilities for the undil of the finapcial stalements
p

Our vhjectives are o oblain ressonable asswrance abont whether the financial statemens as & whole are free frem material
misstatement, whether due Lo fraud or cror, and (W issue an audilor’s repoel that includes sur opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high Jevel of assurance, but is not a guaranice that an audit condueted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect »
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatentents can arise from fiwod or ervor and are considered nuderial if, individuaily
or in the aggregate, they could reasenably be expecied 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken nn the basis of these
financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable af deteeting ivecgultaritivs, including fruud

Irreguifarities, including fraud, arc ingtances ol non-complinnce with fws and regnlations. We desipn procedures in fine with
our responsibilities, outlined above, 16 detect irregalaritics. including Jrand. The risk of not derecting a material missiatement
due 1o fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resuiting from errar, #s [raud may involve deliberate concealment by,
for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The exient to which our procedures are capable
of detecting irregularities, including fraud is deailed befow. Howewver, the primary respousibility for the prevention and
detcction of fraud rests with both those charpad with povernance of the entity antd managenent.

¢ We oblained an understanding, ol the Tegal and regulitory framieworks thar arg applicablc to the company and determined
that the most significant are the Companics Act 20006, DBribery Act 2000, Construclion (Iesign and Management)
Regulations 2013 and the relevant 1ax regulations in the United Kingdom,

. We understvod how Skanska UK PLU is complying with those frameworks by throuph inguiry with managemenl, and
by identifying the Group's policics and procedures regarding contplisauee witit laws and regalations, We carrsberated
our inguiries through our review of board minutes, complianet issues reported through a whistleblowing hetline and
correspondence received from regulatory bodies. We assessed the susceptibility of the Group and Paremt Company’s
financial statesments to material nidssiatenient, including how fraud might oceur {hiough inguiry with mamagement
{including legal) and these charged with governance (o understand where they considered there ways susceptibility to
fraud. As part of this we understood the perlormance targets of management. We also considered the risk of manapement
override.

*  Based on ¢his understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with such faws and regutations.
Our procedures involved testing manual jounal entries and other joumals identilied by specilic sisk criteria, review of
board minutes and any lepal correspondence, ingnirivs with senior management and where applicable, those charged
with governance and oblaining written representations from the direstors ol the Giroup and Parent company.

A further description of our respunsibiiitics [or the audil of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council™s website at httpss/wenw. frc.orpok/auditorsresponsibilities, This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.



Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of Skanska UK Pl

Use of pur veport

This report is made solely 1o the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006, Qur audit work has been undertuken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we arc required
to state ¢o them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by law, we da nat aceept or
assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the company and the company s menbers as a body, for our audit work, for this

reporl, or for the opinions we have formed.

| L

DavidWilson (Senior slatulory auditer)

for and on behall of Ernst & Young LLP, Staintory Auditor
London / /

3 August 2023 - ’
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Skanslia UK Ple (Registered numbesr: 00784752)

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Laoss
FFor The Year Ended 315t December 2022

Noles 2022 2021
£000 £'000

Continuieg operations
Revente from contra€ds with customers 4 1,400,222 1,122,698
Cost of sules _(1.258.974) _(1.005,754)
Gross profit {41,248 116,044
Othey operaling income 5 352 302
Administrative expenses {98,386} (83,538)
Operaling profi 43,214 33708
Finance costs 7 (1,868) {2.022)
Finance jncome 7 13,650 3.060
Profit before tax from continsing aperations 55,12 37406
Income 1ax 9 (14,322} (10,70G)
Profit for the year from continuiug operntions 40,680 o 23880
Prolit afier tax for the year from discontinued aporations 1o - 31,552
Prafil for the year U080 _ 55538
Profit attributable to:
Crwners ol the parent _ 40680 55538

The notes on piges 36 to 77 form part of these financial statements

28



Skanska UK Plc (Regisiered number: 00784752)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Iiemts that may not be reclassified subsequenthy to profit ar locs:
Net actuarial gain on pension scheme

Employees share scheme

Current tax credit relating to iterus of other comprehensive income
Deferred tax charpe relating to items of other comprehensive Income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently (o profit or loss:
Exchange difference

Uther comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax
Total comprehensive incone for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
40,680 45,538
4,383 72,007
2,552 2,490
1441 3,388
(2.522) {21.416)
5.854 56,460
uuuuu - (1,402)
: (1,402)

5,834 55067
46,534 110,605
46,534 110,605

The notes on pages 36 to 77 form part of these [Tnancial statements
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Skanska UK Ple (Registered number: 00784752)

Consnlidated Statement of Financial Position
Faor Vhe Year Ended 31st December 2022

2022 2021
Notes £°000 £000
Agsets
Non-current asseds
Intangible assels 12 8,877 9.634
Property, plant and equipment 13 27816 19,989
Right-of-use assels 14 52,230 44,661
investments 15 - 3,937
pension assel 28 63,743 53,981
Deferred tux 27 5.625 0,393
158.291 . 41495
Current assets
Inventories 16 565 4,573
Trade and other receivables 17 195.840 163,738
Conlract assels 1% 98.403 83,534
Cash and cash equivalents 19 441,472 519,650
730,280 773,495
Total Assets . BO45T1 914.990
Equity
Sharehalder's equity
1sstzed share capital 20 165,000 165,000
Retained eamings 21 179,216 197,682
Tetal cquity 344216 . 362.682
Liabilities
MNon-current liabilities
Lease liabilitics 24 58,604 50,434
Deferred tax 27 {5,936 13,496
Provisions 26 80,326 58,808
_ 154.8606 162,738
Current linbilities
“Frade zad other payables 22 303,273 285,188
Contract liabilities 23 77,623 85.354
Tax payable 4,684 8.166
Lease liabilitics 24 9,909 10,862
395,489 389,570
Total liabilities 550,363 . 552308
Total equily and liabilities . Bo4sTL 914.990

The fnancial stutements were approved by the Board of Directors on 3% August 2023 and were signed on its behalf by

0Dy

M DuymarOlud

ipe - Director

The notes on pages 36 to 77 form part of these nancial stalements
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered nuinber: 00784752)

Company Statement of Financial Position
For The Year Ended 315t December 2022

Assets

MNon-current assets
Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assels
[nvestments

Pension asset

Deferred tax

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Contract assets
Tax receivable

Total Assets

Equity
Shareholder's equity
fssued share capital
Retained carnings

Taotal equity

Liabililies
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax
Provisions

Current linbilities
Trade und other payahles
Lease liabilities

Bank overdraft

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Notes

iz
i3
T4
I5
28

27

17
18

24

26

22
24
19

2022
£'000

8,877
12,302
43,589
48.613
68,752

2,058

184,191
287,526

42,310
5,532

335,368

519,559

2021
£040

0,634
6,457
43,380
44,898
54874

2,576

165,819

259,490
32,788
14,176

306,454

472,273

165,000 165,000
56,825 82,604
221,825 247,604
49,177 48,395
17,188 13,718
190 -
66,555 62,113
138,009 138,594
7,270 7,359
85,900 16,603
211,179 162,556
291,734 224,669
519,559 472,273

The Directors have taken the exemption provided by Section 408 of the Companics Act 2006 and have iot presented a profit
and loss account for the Company. The profit after tax for the year of the Company was £30,234,000 (2021: £27,406,000)

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Dircetors on 3% August 2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

M Duymaz Qludipe - Director

The notes on pages 36 to 77 form part of these (inancial slatements
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skanska UK Ple (Registered number: 60784 752)

Consolidated Statement of Chaages in Lquity
For The Year Ended 3ist December 2022

Balance at Ist January 2021

'rofit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
Dividends paid
Bakance as at 3ist December 2021

Profit for the ycar
her comprebiensive income

‘T'otal comprehensive income
Dividends paid

Balunce as at 31st December 2022

Issued
share
capital
£000

163,000

165,000

165,000

Retained Totad
earnings equily
£400 £°000
103,177 208,177
55.538 55,538
55,067 . 35,067
110,605 110,605
{6,000y {16,100}
_ 197,682 362,682
40,680 44,680
_ 5.8 5854
46,534 46,534
_(65.000) (63,000)
— 179206 234,210

The notes on pages 36 10 77 form part of these financin! statements
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Skanska UK Ple (Registered number: 00784752)

Coripany Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

Lisued
share Retained Total equity
capital earnings £'0600
£000 £'000
Bulance gt [st January 2021 165,000 16,170 181170
Profit for the year - 27,406 27.406
Other comprehensive income - . .55128 55,128
Totnl comprehensive income - 82,534 82,534
Dividends paid - (16,100) {16,100)
Balance as at 3is{ December 2021 165,000 82,604 247,604
Profit for the ycar - 30,234 30,234
Other comprehensive income o - 8,987 8,987
Total comprehensive income - 19,221 39,221
Dividends paid - (65.006G) (65,000)
Balatnce as at 3]st December 2022 165,000 56,825 221,825

The notes on pages 36 1o 77 form part of these financil statements
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)

Consclidated Statement of Cash Flpw
For The Yeur Ended 315t December 2022

2022 2021
Notes £'000 £'600
Cash flows from eperating activitics
Cash genceraled ftam operations 32 5,996 85.489
Tax paid B (9.195) (8.872)
Net cash {used in)/from operating aclivilies 43,199 _ 16.617
Casl flows Trom investing activities
Purchasc of intangible fixed assets 12 (325) (2,804)
Purchase of 1angible fixed asscts {3 {12,168) (3.471)
Proceeds from the sale of tangible lixed ussets 648 372
Proceeds from the sale of investments 3937 -
Proceeds [rom the sale of business operalions 14 - 53,722
Bank and Joan note interest received 7 12,689 _ 2876
Net cash from investing activities _ 4,781 - 50.895
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid (63,000 {10,100)
Principal paid on Jease liabilitivs 24 (14,760) (14.147)
Mel cash used in financing aclivitics (79,760) (30,247)
(Decrease}fincrease in eash and cash equivalents (78.178) 97,265
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 519.650 432,385
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 19 L dara2 519,650

The nates on pages 36 to 77 form part of these financial staiements
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Skuanslka UK Ple (Registered numbesr: G0784752)

Company Statement of Cash Flow
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

2022 2021

Notes £'0 £'000
Cash flows from operating metivities
Cash used in operations 32 (34,167) (24,167
Tax paid {5.15%) (B,872)
Net cash nsed in operating activities " {39,326) . {33.639)
Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends received 50,000 40,000
Purchase of intangible asscts 12 {325) (2,804)
Purchase of tangible fixed assels 13 {7,632) (1,559
Proceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets 553 -
Interest received 3,202 4,308
Net cash from investing activitics 45,798 39,945
Cash NMows from financing activities
Dividends paid (65,000} (16,100}
Principal paid on lease linbilities 24 (10,769} (10,248)
Net cash uscd in financing activities (75,769} {26,348)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (69,297) (19,442}
(Bank overdraft)cash and cash cquivalents at (16,603) 2,839
beginning of year
Bank overdeaft at end of year 19 (85,900} (16,603)

The noles on pages 36 to 77 form part of these financial statements
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Skanska UK Ple (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consalidated Finaneinl Statemenis
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

i, Cerporate Statutary information

Skanska UK Ple (the *Company’) is a public Campany, timited by shares, incorporaicd and domiciled in England and Wales.
The Company's registered number and registered office address can he found on the Company Information page. The principal
activity of the Company gid the Group is construction.

The presentation currency of the financial statements is the Pound Sterling (£, the funetional eurrency of the Group. All values
wre rounded to the nearest thousund pounds £'000. uniess otherwise stated.

2. Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial stutements have been prepared and approved by e Diccctors in conforaity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2000 and under the historical cost convention and include the results ol activitics described in the Directors’
report.

The financial statlemenis have been prepared on a going, concern basis, which assumes that the Group will continue in
operational cxistence and meet its liabilities as they fall duc, for the period From the dite of signing these financial statoments
16 315t Deceinber 2024,

The Group has net current assets ol £340.8 million and nel assets of £344.2 million. The Gronp mcets its day 10 day working,
capital requirements through an inter-Company UK pooling anangement amd docs not have any bank debi or other exiemnal
horrawings er facilitics.

The Group’s financial foreeasts, tiking inte consideration the current environment. show that te Gronp is oxpected to maintain
pusitive cash flows piving the Group the abilily 1o continue 10 operate for the foreseeable Future, ‘The Group has been able to
wlifise cortain govemment stimulus initintives and upen several productivily snalyses preformed, the Directors do not
anticipate requesting any support lrom its ullimate parent, Skanska A3

L view of the circumstances referred to above, the Direclars are sitisfied that sulTicient financial resources will be pencrated
hy the Group for the foreseeable future. Accurdingly. the Directors of the Group helieve that it is appropriate 1o adopt the
poing concem basis in preparing, the financial statements.

Tkewever, should sullicient positive cash low not be available, the poing concern basis would be invalid and adjustments
waould have to be made to provide for any further labilities which niight arise and (o reclassity fixed assels and long-term
liabilitics us current assets and liabititics.

The Company has taken advanlage of (he exemption under section 408 af the Companies Act 2006 1ot (o prepare 4 profit and
foss account as the Company’s results are included n the consolidated statement of protil or loss shown on page 29,

Basis of canselidation

The consolidated {inancial stalcments comprise e financial statcarents of the Campany and its subsidiarics (togetier the
*Group’) as at 31st December 2022, Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights. to variable retuens from its
involvement with the invesiee and has the ability to affeet those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Group contrals an investee if, and only il the Group las:

s Power aver the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the corrent ability (o dircet the relevant activities of the investee)
= Exposure, of righis, to vardable returos from its involvement with the invesiee
= The ability 10 use its power over the investee Lo affeet ils returms

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voling rights resulls in comml. To support this presumption ard when the
Group has icss than a majority of the voling or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstanees in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

*  The contractual arrangerment(s) with the other vote holders of the investee
= Riglts arising from other contractnd arrangements
s The Group's voting rights and potendial voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether oz not it controls an investec if facts and circumstances indicate that there are chianges to nne
or more of the three clements of conlrol. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtzing controd over [he
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of Lhe subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
wequired or disposed of during the vear are included in the conselidated financial statements from he date the Group gains
control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary,

kid




Skanska UK Plc (Registered nnmber: 060784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

2. Accouniing policies - continued

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are atlributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial slatements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into lne with the Group’s sccounting,
policies. All intra-Group assets and Habilitics, cquity, income, expenscs and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group arc climinated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

1 the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assels (including goodswill), liabilities, non-controlling
interest and other components of cquity. while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss,

Associated undertakings and joint arrangecments

A join1 arrangement exisis where the co-owners have rights to the assets of the arrangement and obligations for (he liabilities
of the arrangement. An arrangement that is not siructured through the lormation of a separate Company is a joint operation,
Caontracting projects performed in cooperation with outside contracting companies, with joint and several liability, are reporied
by the Group as joint operations, If the arrangement is & separate Company but the majority of the Company's praduction is
acqtired by the co-owners, then the arrungement is often considered to be a joint operation. IE on the other hand, (he co-
owners of the arrangement only have rights to the net asscts of lhe arrangemeant, it is a jeint venture. Classification of a joint
arrangement requires consideration of its legal form, the terms agreed by the partics in the contractual arrangement and other

circumstances,

An associated underiaking is an catity over which the Group holds a participating inlerest on a fong-term basis and exercises
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not contro! or joint control over thosc policies. Interests in associated undertakings are included in the
consolidated financial statements using the cquity accounting method. Under the equity method, the investment in an
associate or & joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changes in the Group’s share of net assels of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date, Goodwill relating to the
associate or joint venlure is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment separately.”

(IAS 28.26-29).

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint conuol over the joint venture, the Group measures and
rccognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant in{luence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from

disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group has cntered into 2 number of joint operations with different partmers for the purposes of undertaking specific
contracts. Interests in joint operalions are accounted for by recognising the Group's share of income and expenscs and assets

and liabilitics measured according (o the terms of the arrangements.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognisc an impairment loss on its
investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting datc, (he Group determines whether there is objective evidence
that the investment in the associate or joint venture s impaired. I there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of

impairment as the difference between the recoverabic amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying vaiue, and
then recognises the loss within “Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture” in the statement of profil or loss.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When
necessary, adjusiments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Investment in subsidinries
The Group holds invesiments in subsidiarics at cost less any applicable provision for impairment.
Early adoption of new or revised IFRS and interpretations

There has boen no carly adoption ol new or revised (RS or interpretations.



Skanska UK Ple (Registered number: 10784752)

Nates to the Consolidated Yinancial Statements
For ‘The Year Ended 3(st December 2022

%, Accounting policics - continued

New standards and interpretafions
‘I'he foliowing new standards. amendments and interpretations were effective for the irst time tor the year ended 3 1¥ Decamber
2022 bt did not have a material eficet on the Group.

e COVID-19 related rent concessions (Amendments to FFRS 16):

= Onerous Contracts — Cost of Falfilling o Contract {Amendmenis to 1AS 37)

+  Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Inlended Use (Amendments to 1AS 16);

»  Annual improvemeils to IFRS Standards 208-2020 (Amendments (o fFRS |, [FRS 9, IFRS 16 and [AS 41); and
s References {0 Conceptual Framework (Amendments to [FRS 3}

New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective
‘T'here are a number of standards, amendments o standards, and interpretations which have been issued by the IASB that are
cffective in future accounting periods that the Group has decided not te adopt carly. The most significant of (hese are as
follows:

«  Chunges to accounting estimales and accounting potices (Amendments o 1AS land [AS 8);

e Deferred Tax assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (Anwendment Lo 1AS 12)';

. Leascs on sale and leaseback (Awmendinent to RS 16)*; and

s Naon-current liabilities with covenants { Amendment (o IAS 1Y,

' Efteclive Tor the period beginning st January 2023
* Elfective {or the period beginning 1si JYanuary 202.

In January 2020, the IASD issued amendments (o TAS |, which clarity the eriterin used 1o detennine whether fiabilities are
classilied as current or non-cureent. These amendments clarify dthat current or non-current classification is based on whether
an enlity has & right at the end oi the reporting perivd to defer settiement of the liabitity Tor at least twelve months aiter the
reparting period. The amendments also clarify thal “settlement” fuctudes the transter of cash, goods, services, or equity
instruments unless the ohlipation o transler equily instnnnents wises from a conversion Featnre ciassified as an equity
insttument scparately from the liability component of a compound {inanciat instrument. Vhe effective date of this amendment
iras been deferred o annual reporting periods beginning on or after 15t January 2024, Skanska UK IMc is currenily assessing
the impact of these amendments to sccounting standards. The Group does not expect any other stindards issued by the TASB,
Bt nat yet eftective, {o hiave 2 material impact on the Group.

Revenue

Revenue represents the sales value of wark done on construciion contracts and services activities in the period and excludes
VAT. Profit and revenne on constriction contracis is calculiled in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue [vom Contracts with
Customers. When an cuteome ¢l 8 construction confract cun be estimnuted reliably, the Company s preferresl method of revenue
is the sutpul method in which revenue is recognised based on the units of work performed und the price allncaled thereto. This
methad is applicd provided (hal the progress of the work perlormaed can be mcasured based on the contract and during the
contract’s perfortmance. Under this output method the units of work completed under cach contract are messured monthly and
the corresponding output is recognised as revenue, Where it is net practicable to apply this *units of production’ sulput method,
the ‘percentage of completion” input method is used instead. Under this input method costs are recognised as incurred and
revenue is recognised based on tie proportion of tolal cosis a tie reporting date to the estimated total costs of e contract,

Variations in cortract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent thal the amount can be measared reliahly
and its reccipt is considered highly probable i.c. agreed witle the customer, Where the outcome of'a consteuction contract cannot
be estimaled reliably, contract revenuc is recopnised to the extent of contract costs incurred where it is hiphly probable they
will be recaverable. Contract ensts are recognised as expenses in the perivd inwhich they are incusred. Wihien it is probable
that total contract costs will exeeed total contract revenue, the expucted loss is recoprised as an expense itnmedislely as a
provision for foreeas! losses.

Coniract Assets and Contract Liabilities

Unlike the methed used fo recognise contract revenue, the amounts billed to the customer are based on the monthly
achicvement of progress towards our performance obligation in the contracd and on acknowledgement thereof by the customer,
which takes thie form of a contrzetual document call & ‘certificate of completion” or *work order’. Thus, the amounts recopnised
as revenue for o given year do not necessarily coincide with the wmounts billed to er certificd by the customer. In the case of
contracts in which gouds and seivices transferred to the customer exceed the retated amount billed or costified, the difference
is recognised as a contract assel. Whereas in contracts in which the poods or services transferred are lower than the amount
billed 10 or centitied by the custorner, the difference is recopnised as a contraet liability.
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Skansks UK Ple (Registered numnber: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 3ist December 2022

2,  Accounting pelicies - continued

Gavernment Grants

The grants are recogniscd in other inceme within profit or loss when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
recejved, and nil attached conditions wHl he complied with. The grants are recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When thic geant relates 1o an assel, it is
recognised as income in cqual amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Profit from disposal of invesiments
Profit on disposal of the Company’s Invesiments is recognised when all three of the following eriteria are met:

- contracts are exchanged prior to the year-end;
- conditions of the sale that need to be satisfied before legal completion are satisfied before the ycar-cnd. Any

conditions not satisfied before he year-end must be administrative in nature only; and
- full consideration from the sale must be received shortly after the year-end.

Pre.contract costs

Pre-conlract costs are expensed as incurred until it is virtually certain that a contract will be awarded, froro which time further
pre-contracl costs are recognised as an asset and charged as an expense over the period of the contract. Amounts recovered in
respect of pre-contract costs that have been written-off are deferred and amortised over the life of the contract. When financial
close is achieved on Private Finance Initiative (P¥1) contracts and pre-contract cosis are recovered, those costs not previously

capitalised are credited to the profit or loss,

Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to pay a dividend when the distributien is authorised, and the distribution is no longer at
the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws of Eurpland, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposal Groups as held for sale if their carrying amounls will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current assets and disposal Groups classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value iess costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental
costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset {disposal Group), excluding linance costs and income fax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded #s mel only when the sale is highly probable, and the assel or disposal
Group is available for immediate sele in i1s present condition. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is
unlikely that significant changes lo the sale wilt be made or that the decision Lo sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
commiltcd to the plan to sell the assel and the sale expected 1o be compieted within one year from the date of the classification.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classificd as held for sate.
Assels and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately as current items in the statement of financial position.

A disposal Group qualifies as discontinucd operation if it is a componenl of an entity that eitlier has been disposed of, or is
classified as heid for sale, and:

*  Represen!s a separate major line of husiness or geographical area of operations;
» s part of & single co-ordinated plan lo dispase of a separate major line of business or geograplhical area of operations; or
*  [sa subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view Lo cesale.

Discantinued operations are excluded from the results of conlinbing operations and are presenied as a separate column in the
statement of profit or loss.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 10, All athier notes to the financial statements comprise amounts for continuing
operalions, unless indicated otherwise.
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Skauska UK Ple (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financinl Staiements
For The Year Laded 31st December 2022

2. Accounting policies - continued
Entangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries. representing the difference between the fair value of purchase consideration
and the fair value of net assels acquired, is capilalised in the stalement of Grancial position. Goodwill is initially measured al
cost aud then reviewed for iimpairment at least annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the profit or loss tvithin
administrative expenses and is not snhsequently reversed. The fair value ol nel asscts in excess of the fair value of purchase
cousideration is credited (o the income statemant in the vear of gequisition.

Aficr initial recognition, poodwill is measured al cost Jess any accumulated impairment losses. Impairment Yosses are
determined on the basis of the recoverable amount of goodwill, which is hased exclusively on value in use, caleulated by
discounting The expected Rirtore cash flows geneeated by the assel. The discount Tactor is the weighted average cost of capiial
applicable to the parcmi Company. For goodwill. the recoverable amount is estimated for the cash-generating unit to which it
is attvibutable. A cash-generating unii is the smallest Group of asscts that generates cash Alows which are independent of other

Groups ol ussets,

lntangible assels acquited sepatately ae wensured o initial recogaition at cost. "The cost of fntangible assels acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Follawing, itial recagnition, intungible assets are carried at
eost fess any accunulated amorisation and accumulated impatrment losses. Amortisation is recognised in the profit ov loss on
a slraight-line basis over 7 years. Interually generated infungibles, excluding, capitalised developient costs, are not capitalised
and the related expenditure is refiecied in profit ur loss in the period in which the expenditere is Incurred. An intangible assct
is derecognised upon disposal {i.c., dt the dute the recipient obtains contrel} ar when no future ceonomic benchits gre expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain o1 less mising upun derccopuition of the asset {calealated as e difterence bevwveen the net
disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset) is included in the statement of prodit or loss,

Research and development

Research cnsts which predominately relute to client technical solutions and {1 are expensed as incurred. Development
expendilures on an individual project are recognised as an intangible asset when the Ciroup can demunstrale:

e The technical feastbility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale
* i intention to complete and jts ability and inlention to use or sell the ussel

»  How the asset will generate fulure economic benelils

*  The availability of resources to complete the asset

The ability fo measure scliably the expenditure during development

Foltowing initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carricd al cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Anortisalion of the asset begins when develupment is complete and the asset
is avaifable for use. Amortisation is recognised in the profit or loss on a straipht-line basis ever 7 years. During the period ol
development, the asset is tested for impairment annualiy,

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and cquipment is stuted 8t cost less wecuinuloed depreciation and scconmlated himpainnent losses. Cost
comprises the apgregate amount paid and the fair value of any olher consideration given 1o acquire the assel and includes costs
directly attributable 1o making the asset capable of operating as intended.

Depreciation is provided on all property, plaat, and cquipment, other than land, on a straighi-fine basis over its expected usefif
life as follows:

l.caschold improvements 3 - 30 yewrs
IMant and Equipment 3 - 1 yemrs

Frechold land is not depreciated. Pravision for permanent diminution in the value of kend is charged to the statement of profit
or tuss. The residual values, usetul fives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment arc revicwed at each
inancial year end and adjusted prospectively, iFappropriale. (1AS16.51)
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2. Accounting palicies - continued

Financial insttuments

All fineneial instruments, including derivatives, are recognised as a financial asset or financial liability in the statement of
financial positien when the Group becotnes a party {o the contractual provisions of' the instrument. A regular way purchase or
sale of a financial asset is recognised in and derccognised from the statement of financial position using trade date accounting,
A financial asset is derecognised from the statement of financial pesition when the contractual rights to cash flows from the
financial asset expire of when the Group transfers the contraciual rights to receive cash flows from the financiat asset or retains
the contractual rights to receive cash flows, but assumes & contractual obligation to pay cash flows to one or more recipients.
A financial liability is derecognised from the statement of financial position only when the contractual obligetion is fulfilled.

cancelled or expires.

Preseatation of financial assets is based on the Group's business model and the contraclual cash flows of the asset. A financial
assel is measured at amortised cost if the asset is beld within the framework of a business model the objective of which is o
hold finencial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the cash flows on specified dates are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount ouistanding. A finoncial asset is measvred at fair value through other
comprehensive income if the asset is held according to a business model (he objective of which can be achieved both by
collecling contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and the cash flows are solely paymenis of principal and interest
on the principal amount ouistanding. A financial asset is measured at fair value though profit or loss il it is not measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. All financiai asscts are measured at amortised cost. The
Group is only entitled 1o reclassify all relevant financial assets when the Group changes its business model for inanaging
financial assets. Reclassification of financial liabilities is not permitied.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair volue plus or minus transaction costs upon acquisition of a financial
assel or financial liability for a financial asset or financial liability that is not measured at fair value through profit or toss.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured upon initial recognition at their
transaction price (as defined in IFRS 15). ARer initial recognition, financial asseis are measured at emortised cost. Subsequent
measurement of financial liabilities is at amortised cost or fair value through profit or loss.

The Group applies the impairment requirement to expected credit losses on financial assets and a loss provision Tor these is
recognised as a deduction from the assel. On every closing day the loss provision is to be equivalent io an amount reflecting
the expected credit losses for the remaining time until maturity if the credit risk has increased significantly since it was initially
recognised. [Fthe credit risk has not increased significantly since it was first recognised, the loss provision is o be equivalent
fo 12 months of expecied credil losses. For trade receivabiles, contraciual assels and lease receivables, the loss provision is
always to be at an amount equivalent to the remaining time to maturity. The Group measures expected credit losses taking ine
account an objective and probability-—weighted amounl, the time value of money, reasonable and supportable information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with & financial liability or non-financial host, is separsted from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related ta the host; o scparate
inslrument with the same lerms as the embedded derivative would meet Lhe definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract
is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivalives are measured at fair valuc with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in (he terms of the contraet that significantly
modifics the cash lows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial assel out of the fair value through

profit or loss catepory.

A financial usset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
dcrecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

Or
= The Group has transfeired its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received

cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and ¢ither {a) the Group hos
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, or {b) the Group has ncither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has wansferred control of the asset,

When the Group has transferred its rights lo receive cash Nows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and 1o whal extenl, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the ransferred asset to the extent of ils conlinuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recogniscs an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability arc measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that

tie Group has retained.
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2. Acceunting policies - continued

Financial instruments - contineed

A fnancial lability is derccognised swhen the obligatios under the Liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms. o the terms of an
existing liability are substantizlly modified, such an exchange or modiftcation is treated as the derccognition of the original
liability and the recognition of o sew linbitity. T difference in the respective carying amounts is recognised in the statement

of profit or loss,

Offsetling of financial assets and Mnancial labilities occurs when there is a legal right to offset iterns against each other and
the intention to cither scitle these items on a net basis or simuliancously divest the assel and setile the liability.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cosls incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for. as follows:
- Raw materials: Purcluse cost on a first-in/first-out basis

Nel realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary o niake the sale.

Cash

Casli in the statement of financial position comprises cash at banks and on hand and with 8 matutity of three months or less,
which arc subject o an insignificast risk of chaages in value.

Far the purpose of the Consolidated and Company statement of eash flaws, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, as
defined ahove.
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2. Accounting policies - centinued

Taxation

Current income tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except lax relating to items recognised directly
in equity is recngnised in equity and nol in the statement of profit or loss. Management periodically cvaluates positions taken
in the tax returns with respect 6 situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject (o interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate.

Current income tax assets and lisbilitics are measured at the amousni expected to be recovered from or peid Lo the taxalion
suthoritics. The tax rafes and tax laws used to compute tie amournit are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date in the countrics where the Group operates and generates laxable income.

Deferred taxation is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date
betseen the lax bases of asscts and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for accounting purposcs except for temporary
differences arising on the revaluation of assets and the future remittance of undistributed earnings from subsidiaries. Deferred
tax asscls are recorded only to the cxlent thal they are considered recoverable.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the ¢xtent that il is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred lax assel Lo be wtilised. Unrecognised
deferred rax assels are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised 1o the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. (TAS 12.56, 37)

Dicferred tax assets and liabilitics arc measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the assel is realised
or the ligbility is sctiled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax fosses can be utifised,

except:

1. When the deferred tax asset relating 1o the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in & transaction that is not a business combination and, al the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss,

2. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
arrangements, deferred tax asscts are recognised only to the extent that it is probahle that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available apainst which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assels and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxalion authority on either the same taxable entity or different (axable entities which intend eitlier to setile current tax
liabilities and assels on a nel basis, or to realise the asscis and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are inHigily recorded in the eatity's functional currency by applying the spol exchanpe rate
ruling at the dale of the runsaction. Monelary asscts and liabitities denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the
functional currency rate of exchange ruling st the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items 1hal arc measured in terms of historical cost inn a foreign currency are translated using Lhe exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary ilems measured at [air value in a foreign currency are translated using lhe
¢xchange rates al the dale when the fair value was determined.

On conselidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into sterling at the raie of exchange prevailing
at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of OCI relating to thal particular foreign operatien is reclassified to profit or Joss,

Any poodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising an the acquisition are trented as assels and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the spoi

rale of exchange at the reporting date.
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2. Accounting policies - continued
Employec benefit casts

Certain of (he Group's cmiployecs arc members of a Group-wide detfined benefit pension plaa. ‘I'he cost of providing benelits
is caleulated annually by independent netuaries using the projected unit oredit method. The charge to the profit or toss reflects
the cuirent serviee eost af such obligations. The expected return on plan assets and the interest cost on scheme liabilities arc
inctuded within financial income and expensus in the profit or loss, Fhe retirement benelil delcit recognised in the statement
of financial position represents the excess of the presenl value of schemie liabilities over fair value of schemc asscts,
Differences between the actual and expeeted retums on assets and experience gaing and fosses arising on scheme liabilities
during, the vear, together with differences arising, from chanpes in assumptions, are recognised in the consalidated stateiment
of comprehensive incame in the year.

The cost of delined contribution pension schemes is expensed to the profit or less as incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (lepad or construcdive} ns a resull of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resowrces embadying economic henefits will he reyuined o setlle the obligation and a whiable
estimate can be made of the amount of (e obligation. When the Group expeets seisne or all e a provision to be reimbuorsed,
for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursemnent is recognised as aseparate assct, but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain, The expense relating w a pravision is presenwed in the statement wl’profit or loss net of auy reimbursement.

1 the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a awrent pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the lability. When discounting, is uscd, the ine in the provision duc to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cosl,

Provisions for warmnty-refatel costs arc recopnised when the produat is sold wr service provided o the customer. Iitial
recognitian is based on historical experience, The initial estimate of warranty-related costs ts revised anmaally,
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2. Accounting policies - continued

Leases

The Group assesses at conlract inception whether a contract is, or cantains, a lease. That is, il the contract conveys the right to
eontral the use of an identificd asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

All leases are accounted for by recognising a rigln-ol-use asset and a lease liability excepl for:
. Leases of Jow value assets; and
*  Leases with a duration of 12 months or less.

Lease liabilities arc measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease term, with the
discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is nol readily
determinable, in which vase the Group's incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used. Variable lease
payments are only included in the measurement of the lcase liability if they depend on an index or rate. In such cascs, the
initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable ¢lement will remain unchanged throughout the lease term. Other
variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:
* amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;
*  the exercise price of any purchase aption granted in favour of the Group if it is reasonable cerlain fo assess that
option;
*  any penalties payable for lerminating the lease, if the term of the |case hias heen estimated an the basis of termination
option being exercised.

Right of use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives received, and
increased for:
*  lcasc payments made al or before commencement of the lease;
. initial direct costs incurred; and
*  the amount of any provision recognised where the Group is coniractually required to dismantle, remove or restore
the leased asset (typically leaschold dilapidations).

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interesl charged al a conslant rate on the balance
outstanding and are reduced for leasc payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
remaining terrs of the lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to be shorter than the lease

term.

If ownershig of the leased assel transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lcase (because, for cxample, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee
extension or tcrmination oplion being exercised), il adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liubility to reflect the payments to
make over the revised term, which are discounted at the same discount ratc that applied on lease commencement. The carrying
value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index
is revised. In both cases an equivelent adjusiment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use assel, with the revised
carrying amount being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term,

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a leasc with the lessor, the accounting depends on the nature of the
modification:

*  if the renegotiation results in onc or more #dditionus] assets being leased for an amount commenswrate with the
slandalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate lease in
accordance with the above policy;

* in all olher cases where the rencgotiated increnses the scope of the lease (whether that is an extension to the lease
term. or one or more additional assets being leased), the lease liability is remteasured using the discoent rate
applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount;

*  ]Jf1he renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of ihe lease Hability and
right-of-use asset are reduced by the samc proportion 1o reflect the partial of full termination of the lease with any
difference recognised in profit or loss. The leasc liability is then further adjusted to ensure its canying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotialed term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modilication date. The right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.

For contracts that both convey a righl to the Group to use an identified asset and require services to be provided to the Group
by the lessor, the Group has elected to account for the entire contract as a lease, i.c. it does allocate any amount of the
contractual payments 1o, and account separately for, any services provided by the supplier as part of the contract.
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2. Accounling pulicies - continued

Nature of leasing activities {in the capacity as lesser)

‘I'he Group leases a number of properiies from which it operates. [n some cases, the lease contracts provide for payments to
increase cach year by intlation or resel periodically to market vental rates. In some property leases the periodic rent s [ixed

over the lease term.

The Grotp also leases certain itetns of plam and equipment. Lenses of plant, equipment and vehicles comprise only tixed
paymens over the fease terms

‘The percentages in the table below reflect the current proportions of lease payments that are ¢ither fised or variable. The

sensitivity reflects the impact on Lhe carying amount of lease linbilities and ripht-of-usc assets il there was an uplift of 5% on
the halance sheet date {o fease payments that arc variable,

31st December 2022

Payments L.ease Fixed Yariable
in ke year canlracls paymenis payments Sensitivity
£000 numher Yo Yo £000
Property leases with payments 4,788 5 - 32 328
linked to inflation
Property leases with fixed 3,608 12 24
payments
1.cases of plant and equipment 2,527 27 17
Vehicle leases 3,840 [RVETY 27
14763 100 68 T 328

‘The Group sometimes negotiates break clanses in its property leases. On a case-by-case basis, the Group will consider whether
the shsence of a break clause would expose the Giroup to excessive risk.

Ai 318t December 2022, tiwe careying amounts of lease liabilities are pot reduced by (he wnoum of payments that would be
avoided from exercising break clauses because on bath dates it was considered reasanably certain that the Group would not
exercise its ripht to excrcise any ripht to break the lease. Total lease payments af £10,346,000 arc potentiatly avoidable were
the Group to cxercise break clases at the earliest opportunity,

The Group applies the shori-lerm lease recognition exemiption to its short-term leases (i.c., those leases that have a leasc term
of 12 mionths ot less from the ecommencement date and do not conlitin a purchase option). 1t also applics the lease of low-value
assels recognilion exemption to non-property and non-vehicle leeses of less than £25,000 that are considered to be low velue.
L.ease payments on short-term [eases aired leases of low-value assets are recoghiscd as expense on a straight-line hasis over the
lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessmily takes a substuntial period of
time to get ready for s intended nse or sule are capitalised as part of the cost of the assct. Al other borrowing costs arc
expensed in the petied in whicl they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in

connection with the borrowing ol funds.

The interest capitalised is the gross interest incurred on the Group's development specific borrowings. Interest is capitalised
from the commeacement of the development work until the dite of practical completion.
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3. Accounting judgements runt estinealion uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policics and reported amounls of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical expericnce and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable vnder the
circumslances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements aboul carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily appurent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimales.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates arc recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that and prior periods, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both cusrent and future periods.

The key estimates and judgements in drawing up the financial statements sre in connection with construction contracts in
progress, ¢laims on construction contracts, the valuation of pension liabililies and investments in subsidiary undertakings

impairmen! tests and lease length and incremental borrowing rate used.

Principal assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit pension liabilities (Note 28) - These assumptions were set
on the advice of the schemes® actuaries having regard to current market conditions, history, and faciors specific to the scheme.

Determination ol lease term [or some lease coniracts in which the Group is a lessee - The Group determines the lease term as
the non-canceilable term of the lease. together with any periods covered by an option 1o extend the lease if it is reasonably
certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an eption to lerminate the leasc. if it is rcasonably certain not {o be exercised,
The Group has several lease conteacts that include extension and termination options. The Group applfies judgemcnt in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether to exercise the option 1o renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incenlive for it to excrcise cilker the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within
its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the oplion to renew or (o terminate.

Determination of the incremental borrowing rate used 1o measure lease liabifitics - The Group cannot readily determine the
interest rate implicit in the lease, thercfore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The 1BR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrew over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to oblain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar econemic environment. The TBR therefare
reflects what the Group *would have to pay’, which requires cstimation when no observable ratcs are available. The IBR is
determined on a quarterly basis, by the Group's ultimate parent entity, Skanska AB. Discounl rales used are disclosed in Note

24 of these financial statements.
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4, Revenue from contracts wilth customers

Expected revenue recognition for remnaining performance obligations

Contracts may run for a period grealer than one year. The expectled revenue recopnition relaling to ongoing or won conbiacts,

at 3 1st Decemnber 2022 is as fallows

2023 2024 2025 2026+ Total
£'m £'m £'m £'m £'m
Expected revenue o 887 (1] 372 1022 3115
2022 2021
£'000 £000
Canstruction works 1,299.0:2 Q44,004
Rendering of services 101180 178,684 _
IFRS 13 revenue from contracts with customers 1.400,222 1,122,698

No revenue was derived from exchanpe of poods ar services (2021: £nil). Revenue recognised in the year from amounts that
were included in the contract liability al the beginning of the perind equuls £83,354.000 (2021: £88,065,000). There was no
revenue recognised in the year ffom performance obligations satisfied in previous years. (2021: £2,700,000). Revenue is

recognized according to IFRS 15 Revenue from Conitracts,

5. Oiher operating income

Income frow sale of property, plant and equipment
Government grants

2022 2421
£000 £000
352 -

- 302

352 302

Covernment grants in the prior year relale to supporting e payroll of the Company’s cmployees during the COVID-19
pandemic. The Company had to commit to spending the assistance on payroll expenses and does not have any unfulfilled

obligations relating to this propram.
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6. Employees and Directors

Wages and salaries
Social securily costs
Other pension costs

The amount recognised as an cxpense for the following pension plans is as follows:

Defined benefil costs
Defined contribution cosls

The average monthly number of employees during the year was gs follows:

Construction
Administration

Directors’ remuncration
Long-term incentive plans
Pensions

Infonination regarding the highesl paid Director is as follows:

Director remuneration
Long-term incentive plans
Accrued pension as at 31st December

The numbcr of Dircetors 1o whom retirement beaefits swere accruing at year end was as follows:

Defined contribution schemes
Defined heachit schemes
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2022 2021
£000 £100
YL 224,801
26,715 23,759
32,095 24 987
288,097 271,553
2022 2021
£'000 £000
2,847 2,802
29,248 22,185
32,095 24,587
2022 2021
805 1,042
2,630 2,814
3,435 3,856
2022 2021

£ £
3,564,481 2,172,378
303,673 162,823
26,933 19,060
2022 2021

£ £
757,936 383,501
126,045 55,147
32,793 31,984
2022 2021
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7.  Net{inance income

Finance income:

Bank inlerest

[merest income on pension schanie assets
Loan note interest

FFinance costs:
Interest expense o fease Habilities
Interest on pension scheme Habilitics

Net Hnance income

5. Profit before income fax

Included in cost of sales:

Cost of inventory recognised us expense
Depreciation of owned assets

Profit on disposal of fixed assets
Depreciation of right-ol-use asscis
Expense relaling to shorl-lerm leases
Expense relating o low vatue leases
Resecarch costs

Tucluded in administrative expenses:

Depreciation of owned assels
Depreciation of right-of-usc assels
Impairment of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of infangible asscls
Foreign exchange losses

Audit of Group's consolidated financial stateincnls
Audit of garen Company's financial slstements
Audit of parent Company's subsidiaries and related entities

Total audit fecs
Audit related services

Other non-audit service fees
Tutal fees paid by Group

S0

2022 2021
£'000 £1000
9,360 3,060
947 .
3,129 -
13,656 3,000
1,868 1,676
- 36
1,868 2,022
11.788 1,038
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
%39 847
2,434 2,841
- (855)
7,162 6,925
37900 2,512
o4 187

. 178
1255 643
1,378 2.922
2,000 1,446
1,082 -
03 .

5 5

2 2
570 577
577 584
280 -
a7 584



Skanska UK Plc (Registered number; 00784752)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenis
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022
9. Income tax
The major components of income tax expense are:
Cansolidated profit or loss
Current incame tax
Current income tax charge
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year
Total current tax charge
Deferred tax
Current year lax charge / (credit)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous year

impart nf change in camprale tax rale

Total deferred tax charge / {credit)

Total tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss
Consolidated other comprehensive income
Currenl fax credit on pensions

Deferred tax charge on pensions

Total tax charge reported in other comprehensive income

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profil multiplied by UK tax rate:

Accounting profit before 1ax from continuing operations
Profit before tax from a discontinued operation

Accounting profit before income tax

Profit before tax multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
19% (2021: 19%)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Allowahie deductions for tax purposes

Adjustment in respecl of prior years

Change in rate

Employees share scheme adjustment to other comprehensive income

Total tax charge
Income tax attributable to continuing cperations

Income tax altributable 1o discontinued operations

Changes in corporation tax rate

2022 2021
£000 £'000
8,120 8,676
2,616 3.594

10,736 12.270

2,635 (481)

951 2,869

- (3,89%8)

3,586 {1,510)
14,322 10,760 _

2022 2021
£7000 £'000

{1,441} (3,388)
2,522 21,416

1,081 18,028

2022 2021
£'000 £000

53,002 34,746
- 38,520
55,002 73,266
£0,450 13,920
34 716
£1,149) -
3,568 6,463
1,404 (3,345)
15 (26)
14,322 17,728
14,322 10,760
- 6,963
14,322 17,728

The Finance {No.2} Act 2015 reduced the main rate of UK corporation tax to 19%, effective from | April 20t 7. The Finance
Act 2021 increased the UK's main corporation lax rate to 25% effective from 1 April 2023.
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Skanska UK Ple (Regis(ered number: 00784752)

Notes to {hie Consolidated Financial Statements
Yor The Year Ended 315t December 2022

H). Discontinued operadiony

‘There were no disconrtinned operations in the year to 3is1 December 2002,

In 202{}, the sharcholders of the Company appraved a plan {o sell its Infrastiucture Services operating unil. Infrastructure
Services was subsequently classified as a discontinued operation up until the date of disposal. The sale of Infrastructure
Services was compleled on 30th April 2021 for cash proceeds of £53.722,000. The results of tie operating unit included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 3 Ist December 2021 up until the date of disposal is

presented below.

Revenue fram conlracts with customers

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other pperating income

Adminisiration cxpenses

COrperating profit

(Gain on disposal of business operations

Finance cosis

Profit hefore tax from discoatinned vperations

Tax:
Related Lo pre-tax profit from ordinary activities
Related to gain on sale of discontinued opeition

Profit for the year from discontinued eperations

2021

£000

126,888

{110,6:44)

16,244
6401y

9,343

29,069

_____ _(393)

38,520

{1,796)

(T
L3552

The major classes of assets and liabilitics of the Infrastruclure Services operating unit at the date of disposal and ihe associated

gain recognised in the financizl statements is as fullows;

Assets

Intangible asscts

Property, plant and equipment
Righl of usc asscts

Inventory

Contraet assels

Debtors

Linkilities
Contract liabilitics
Creditors
Provisions

Lease liabilities

Net assets disposed
Salc procecds
Net assets disposed

Disposal costs and warranlies provided

Gain on disposal

The net cash flows incurred by Inlrastuclure Services, were as (ollows:

Operaling
Tnvesling
Financing

Net cash inflow

2021
£7000

£.205
£Y9s8
24,840
3,1
28179
8

594101

26349
1933
1,168

23,132

52,582

6829

53,722
(6,829)
(17,824)

2069

2021
£000

3,912
{(103)
{2,302)



Skanska UK Ple (Registered nminber: 00784752}

Nodes to the Consolidated Finaocial Statements
For The Year Ended 315t December 2022

11, Profit/(loss) of parent Company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the statement of comprehensive income of the parenl Company is
not presented as part of these financial statements. The Company's profit afier tax for the financial year was £30,325,000

(2021: £27.406.000).
12, Intangible assels

Group nnd Company

IT Software

£7000
Caost
Al Ist January 2022 9.634
Additions 325

Al 31st December 2022

Amortisation
At Ist January 2022

9,959

1,082

Charge for the year
At 31st December 2022 [,G82
MNet hooli value
At 31st December 2022 8.877
Al 3 st December 2021 9,634
13. Property, plant and equipment
Group
Frechold Leasehold Plant and
property improvements machinery Totals
£'000 £'000 £'000 £100

Cast
Al Ist January 2022 a7 11.,48% 60,226 71,804
Additions - 5,997 8,171 12,168
Disposals - {739) (14,221) (14,960)
Al 31st December 2022 97 16,739 52.176 65,012
Depreciation
At 1st Januery 2022 - 5,388 46,427 51,815
Charge for the year - 734 2,959 3,693
Eliminated on disposal - 277 {14.589) {14,312}
At 3]st December 2022 - 6,399 34,797 41,196
Net book value
At 315t December 2022 97 10,340 17,379 27816
At 3ist December 2021 97 6,093 13,799 19.980
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MNotes 1o the Consolidated Financinl Statements
For The Year Lnded 31st Decembher 2022

13. Property, plant and equipment {continned)

Company Lensehold Plant and

improvenments nachinery Totals

£000 £°000 £000

Cost
At st Japuary 2022 11.363 19951 31,316
Additions 7.632 - 7,632
Disposals {639) o Alney) o __[13.708)
Al 3]st December 2022 18.358 6,882 23,240
Depreciation
At Ist January 2022 3,292 19,587 24.859
Charge for the year T34 500 1,234
Eliminated on disposal 3717 (13.532) N (13,155}
Al 315t December 2022 6383 6385 _ 12938
Net booi value
At 315t Decemnber 2022 11975 AT 12,302
At 3151 December 2021 6893 364 . 6457

14. Right-of-use Assets

Group Land and Plant and Motor
Buildings equipment Yehicles Totals
£'000 £1000 £7000 £°000
At st January 2022 35,877 2,426 6.358 44,661
Additions 10.204 1.081 6916 18,201
Depreciation (+4,400) (2.470) (3.604) (10,540)
Impairment (2,000} - - (2,000)
Effect of modification of jease terms 1,927 27 3} 1,951
Disposals - - (43) (43)
At 31st December 2022 41542 _ 1064 o 9,624 52,230
Cempany Laund and Plant and Motor
Buildings equipntent Yehicles Totals
£000 £600 £400 £1000
At Ist lanuary 2022 35,544 1478 6,358 43.380
Additions 268 875 6916 8,059
Depteciation (1,029) (2.241) (3,604) (1.774)
Impairment (2,000) - - (2,000)
Effect of modification ol lease lenns 1.970 - (3 1,567
Disposals - - {43) (43)
Al 3151 December 2022 33,853 7 2 9,624 43,589



Skanska UIX Ple (Registered number: 00784752)

Nates to {le Conselidnted Financinl Statements

For The Year Ended 3fst December 2022

15. Investments

Group

Cost

Al 151 January 2022
Disposals

At 3 ist December 2022

Provisions
At Ist January 2022 and 31 December 2022

Net book value
At 315t December 2022

At 31st December 2021

Compsny

Cost
At sl January 2022 and 3 [st December 2022

Provisions
Al Ist January 2022
Provision for ycar

At 31st December 2022

Net book value
Al 31st December 2022

At 3tst December 2021

Shares in
participations
£500

1,937
(3.937)

3,937
Investment
in Group

undertakings
£'000

90,361

41,463
285
41,748

48,613

48,898



Skanska UK Ple (Registered number; 00784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
¥or The Year Ended 3tst December 2022

IS, Investmoents {continucd)
Subsidiaries

The following subsidiary undertakings all have constraction as their principal activity (except where marked * where the
principal aetivity #s the developuent of property 1o hold for investment purposes, ** where the principal activity is the
development of property and ¥** whore the subsidiary is dormant). The subsidiary undertakings marked ¥*** are indirectly
awned but not controlled by the Company and therefore the resulis of these companies are not included in the consolidaled
financial stutements. All coinpanies vre repistered in England and Wales except Cementation Skanska Ireland Ltd which is
registered in Ireland and Skanska ESS Construciion 1113 which is registered in Sweden. Unless siated otherwise, the registered
office in England und Wales is: 1 lercules Way, Leavesden, Wattord W23 TGS, The registered office in Ireland is: ¢o
KPMG. I Stokes Place, 8t Stephen's Green. Dublin 2 and the iegistered office in Sweden is Odislovsviigen 113, 225 92 Lund.

The tollowing subsidiaries arc 100% dircetly owned. All shares are the same class of ordinary shares.

Skanskua Construction UK Limited

Skanska Project Developments Limited**
Skanska Technology Limited

Cementation Construction Limited*%#
Cementation Mining Limiled¥*#

Davy Mining Limited**#

Skanska Construction Company Limiieds +*
Skanska Healthcarc Trusiees Limited® *
Skanska Construction {Regions} Limited
Trollope & Colls Limited

Skanska Construction Services Limited
Skanska Trusteeships Limited***

Skanska Infrastructure Development LK Linvited
Skanska Infrastructure Investment UK Limiled

The following subsidiarics arc 100% indircctly owned unltess stated otherwise:

Cementation Skanska Limiled

Cementation Skanska lreland Limited (in liguidation)

Cizrk & Fenn Skanska |.imited

Skanska J.V. Projects Limited

Skanska Major Projects Limited

Skanska Rashleigh Weatherfoil |imited

Wilson & Jennings Limited***

SPD Tumplegatle Limited**

Skanska Construction Services Trustee T hmied*#3*

Skanska TAM Limiled****

Skanska £SS Construction HB {25% owned)

Skanska RM PSP Limited* ¥** {87 5% owned) - (i liquickution; registered office: (/0 Evelin Partners LI, Portwall Place, Portwall
Lane, Brisial ST 6NA)

MNP H Tlealthcarc (1icldings) Limited **** (50% ovwned) ~ (Registered offive: Ind Floor, Sotuk Building, 200 Aldersgete Street, Lovdio,
ECI4 44Dy

The following Corpanies sre exempt fron publishing audited accoums ender Section 479A of the Companics Ael 2060;

Trollope & Colls Limited - registration: 00079287

Skanska Construction {Repions) Limited - registeation: 00225316
Skanska Construction Servives Limited  registration: 040067608

Davy Mining Limited - registrution: 00473118

Wilson & Jennings Limited — registration: 00752550

Skanska J.V. Projects Limited  registration: 03686027

Skanska Major Projects Limited - registration: 00993835

Clark & Fenn Skanska Limited - registration: 00679167

Skanska Techrology Lintited  repistration: 009321 5K

Skanska Project Developments Limited — registration 06009021
Skanska Infrastructure Development UK Limited — registration 03024337
Skanska Infrastructure Investinent UK Limited - registration 04624530
SPD Templegate Limnited - registration 09794314



Skanska UK Ple (Registered number: 00784752)

Notes 1o the Consolidated Finnncinl Statements
For The Year Ended 3 st December 2022

I6. Inventories

Group

2022 2021

£000 £4000

kaw materials 545 484
Propertics - 4,089
565 4,573

17. Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
£400 £°000 £'000 £7000
Current:

Trade receivables 49 549 56,444 5,396 8
Amounts owed by parent cntity 38,727 39,493 38,727 39,493
Amounts owed by subsidiary companies - - 217,305 194,725
Amounts owed by other group nndertakings 501 460 1,629 {,58¢%
Qther receivables 60,720 32,320 13,282 17,127
Prepayments and accrued income 46,343 34,021 11,187 6,548
195,840 165,738 287,526 259,490

Trade and other receivables are part of the Group's operating cyele and are recognised as current assets. Trade and other
receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms ol 30 to 90 days settlement. As at 3]st December 2022, trade
receivables with an initial carrying value of Enil (2021: £4,194.000) were impaired and fully provided for.

The table below shows the ageing profile of trade receivables and contract assets (£°000).

Days past due

Current 0-30 31-60 61-90 91-120 121+ Total
Group
Trade receivables 34,735 9682 1,520 755 586 1,971 49549
Conlract asscls 86,618 8,247 2,256 827 455 - 098,403
Expecied credit loss - 4,407 158 - 636 1,892 7,093
Expected loss rate 0% 24% 4% 0% 59% 9R%
Company
Trade receivables 5,396 - - - - - 5,396

Contract assets 42,310 B - - - - 42,310
Expecled credit loss - - - - . .

8. Conéract assels

At 31st December 2022, the Group had confract asscts of £98,403,000 (2021: £83,534,000}. At 31st December 2022, the
Company had contract asscts of £42,310,000 (2021: £32,788,000). Conlract assels consists of amounts recoverable on
contracts. The change in contract assets in the year is due 1o normal activity and liming of certification of work done in the
consiruction business.
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Skanshka UK Ple (Registered nuniber: U0784752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stalemenis
For The Year Ended 3151 Decenther 24022

19. Cash, cash equivalents, and bank overdrafts

Group Company
2022 202t 2022 2021
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Bank accounts Coo4an Ay 519650 - (85,900 (16,603)

[nchuded in the Group total is £47. 185,000 restiicted cash held in joint arrangements {2021: £57,000.000)
accounts carns interest based on duily deposit rates.

20. Issued share capital

Antharised, allotied, issued and fully paid share cupital:

Number: Clnss Nominal Vatee: 2022
£
3.300,000,000 {rdinary £0.65 165,000,000

21, Reserves

Group

At st Junoary 2022

Profit for tie year

Net actuarial gain on defined pension schemes

Employee share award schem

Income tax relating to ilems of olker comprehensive income
Dividends

At 3]st December 2022

22, Tradc and other payabies

Group Co
2022 2021 2022
£U00 £7000 £'a00
Carrent:
Trade payables 41,524 39,571 T817
Amounts ewved o parent entity - - -
Amounis awed o subsidiary companics - - ¥8,999
Other payables 65,896 52,904 18.809
Aceruals and delerred income 195,853 192,713 B 22,384
o021 285,185 138,009,

‘Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilitics:
- Trade payables are non-inferest bearing and are normally on 4 5-day payment terms
-~ Other payables arc non-irterest bearing
- Interest payable is normnlly scttled quarterly throughont the financial year.

. Cash in bank

2021
£
165,000,000

Retzined
carnings
£000

157,682
40.680
4,383
2,552
(1,081)
(65.000)
179.216_

mpany

2021
£000

3,149
89,585
19,195

26,665

- For terms and conditions with parent crtity, subsidiary companies and other group undertakings, refer to Note 31.

- lor explanations on the Group's liquidily risk management process. refer to Note 25,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 315t December 2022

23. Cuntract Habilities

Al 3 st December 2022. the Group had contract liabilities of £77,623,000 (2021: £85,354,000). Contract liabilitics consists of
billings-in-cxcess. At 31st December 2022, the Company had no contract liabilities (2021: £nil). The change in conlract
lisbilities in tle year is due to normal activity and timing of certification of work dosie in the construction business.

4. T enge liahilities

Graup Land and Plant and Motor
Buildings equipment Vehicles Toetals
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
AL st January 2022 52480 2,475 6,341 61.296
Additions 10.204 L0g1 6,216 18,201
Interest expense 1,607 41 220 1,868
Lease payments (8,405) (2,514) (3,841) (14,760)
Effect of modification of {casc terms 1,927 27 3) 1,951
Disposals - - (43) (43)
At 315t December 2022 57813 1,110 9,590 68,513
Company Land and Plant and Motor
Buildings equipment Vehicles Tatals
£000 £°000 £000 £:000
AL st January 2022 47,904 1,514 6,336 55,754
Additions 268 875 6,916 8.059
Interest expense 1,244 13 220 1,479
Lcase payments ©ed7) {2,281) (3,841) (10,769)
Effecl of modification of lease terms 1,970 - (3) 1,967
Disposals - - (43) {43)
At 3151 December 2022 46,739 123 9,585 56,447
The table below shows the payments and commitments for operating leascs nol capilalised
Group Company
2022 2022
£'000 £000
Short term lease expense 3,700 -
Low value lcase expense 94 -
The table below shows incremental borrowing ratc (IBR) used to measure lease liabilities:
Discount rate (%)
Leuse Term 1 year 2 years 3 years 5 years 10 yenrs 15 yenrs 30 years
Q4 2021 1.6 1.9 2.0 24 31 3.1 33
Q1 2022 24 2.8 2.9 32 38 37 4.0
Q22022 32 3.5 3.0 38 4.4 4.4 4.5
Q32022 39 4.0 4.0 4.2 5.0 50 4.9
G4 2022 5.1 5.2 5.1 5.3 6.1 6.2 6.]
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Nates lo the Consolidated Financinl Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

25. Finuncial instrements

Exposure lo credil. interest zale and liquidity risk arises in the norimal course of the Group and the Compauny’s business.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will ol meet its abligations under a finaneial instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financiat loss, The Group Is exposed 1o credit risk lrom its operating activitics (primarily trade receivabies) and lronn its
financing activities, including depasits with banks. fareign exchange transactions andd ofhier financiul instruments. Management
has a credit policy in place. Credit cvatuations are performed on alfl prospective customers prior (o eatering into construction
contracts and exposure Lo credit risk is monilored on an ongoing basis. At e statement of financial position date there were
no significant concentrations of credit risk, The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amonnt of
trade receivables and contract assets at the staicment of financial position date.

Interest rate risk

Interest sate risk Js the risk that the fair value or fulure cash fows ol a financial instrumient will Nuctuaie because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group's exposure (o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily 10 the Group’s
long-lerm debt obligations with Noatiig interest rates. The Group and Company do nuot seek o reduce exposure Lo fluctuations
in interest rates through the use of derivative financinl instruments. The Group smeets s day to day working capital
requirernenis through an inter-Company UK pooting arangement and does 106 flave any bank debt or other external
borrowings or facilities.

Liquidity risk

The Group uscs cash-tow projeciions as u means of managing the Huctuations in short-tenm liquidity and to minimise the risk
that it cunnot meet its payment obligations duc 1o lack of lguidity. As ot 31st Decenmber 2022, 1he Group had cash and cash
equivalents totalling £44 1,472,000 (2021: [5§9,650.008) and no debt. Included in this wtal is £47,185.000 restricted cash

held in Joint arcangemenis (202F: £57.000.000).

Effective interest rates asul malurity analysis

As at 31st December 2022, income-carning financial assels ol the Group comprised cash amd cash equivalents totalling
£441,472,000 (2021: £519.650,000) and of the Company £nil (2021 £nil). Interest is varned on net cash balances at floating
rates linked 10 the Swedish base rate. The Group has ne overdralt or bank debi.
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Nates to the Consplidated Financial Statemeats
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

Fair Yahie

All of the Group's financial assets and liabilitics are measured within the consolidated financial statermemts at amortised cost,
with amortised cost considered a reasonable approximation of fair value given the short term nature of the Group's asscts and
linbilities. The only cxception to this being the defined benefit pension plan surplus, which is measured at fair value with
changes reflected through other comprehensive income, As a result, all financial assets and liabilities, with the exceplion of
the defined benefit pension plan surplus sre considered [Level 3. The investinents de not have a quoted price in an aclive market
and are measured at cost because the fair value cannot otherwise be measured.

Fair value is the price that would be reccived to sell an asset or paid to transfer o fiability in an orderly iransaclion between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value mneasurement is based on the presumption that the fransaction to
sell the asset or transier the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous markel for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advaniagcous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that markel paricipants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
parlicipants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurerment of a non-financial asset tekes into account a market participant's ability to genernte economic benefils
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair valuc is reasured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whele:

Level | — Quoted (unadjusied) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation tecliniques for which the lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or

indirecily observable
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the [owest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

There have been no Iransfers between Levels during the period.

Sensitivity analysis
Al 313t December 2022 and 315t December 2021, it was estimated that a peneral rise of one percentage point in interest rates

would have no material impact on profit before lax.

Capital Management
Capital requirements vary between business streams. The Group’s construction projects are mainly based on customer funding.

As a result, in its construction business stream, the Company can operate with low levels of cash investment (negative warking
capital). The free werking capital within the construction business stream together with the Group’s operations make it possiblc
for the Group to finance investments in its own project development.

A number of financial targets have been established that are judged to best reflect the profitability of the operalions and best
demonstrate the financial scape for investment and growth. The return on equity and on capital employed is a measure of how
well the capital provided by the shareholders and lenders is being used, No changes were made in the objectives, policics or
processes for managing capital during the years cnded 3 1st December 2022 and 2021,
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Notes (v the Consolidated Financinl Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

25, Financial instruments - continucd

Group Campany
2022 2021 2022 2021
£100 £'000 £000 £7000
Loans and receivables
Conlract assets 98403 83,534 42,310 32,788
Trade receivablies 49,549 59,444 5,396 S
Amounts owed by tellow Group undertakings 39,228 39,953 257.661 235,807
Other receivables 60,720 32,320 13,282 17,127
Fimancial assets
Cuash and cash cquivalents dd 1,472 519,650 - -
Total Finnncial Assets 6893720 7300 31869 285,730
Finuncial liahilities
Trade poyables 41524 12,571 7.817 3,149
Amounts owed to fellow Grenp underlakings - - 88,099 BY,585
Other payables 65,896 52,904 1R.809 19,195
Accruais and deferved income 195,853 192,713 22.38: 26,665
Lease Habilities n8513% 61,206 56,4400 55,754
Bosrowings ~ - 85900 16,603
Total financial hiabilities CATLIS6 MMGBA  ZR03SS 210,951
Maturity analysis for non-derivative finaneial linhilities
On demand More than 3
and less than wmenths
3 monihs
£7000 £°000
Year ended 31st December 2022
Trade and other payables (Group) 94.250 14,170
Trade and ather payables {Cumpany) 22.533 -
Year ended 315t December 2021
Trade and other payables {Group) 70119 22,356
Trade and other payaliles (Cempany) 22,344 -
The table below shows the undiscounted matierily analysis for lease linhility payments:
Group Uptod Between 3 Between | Between 2 Over 5
munths und 12 and 2 nnd 5 years
months years years
At 315t Decemnber 2022 £1000 £(100 £'000 £000 £7000
Lease liabililies 24638 7.428 13,990 17,468 49,009
Company Uptal Between 3 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5
manths and 12 andg 2 and 5 years
mauths years YEAUS
At 315t Decembier 2022 £'000 £:000 £°000 £7000 £000
lLease liabilitics 2,261 6,583 8.347 13,272 39,159
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Notes to the Consolidated Finnncial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

25. Financial instraments — continued

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities
Lease liabilities - current

Less: casli and short-term deposits

Net surplus

Shareholders’ equily
Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio %

26. Provisions

Group

At Ist January 2022
Released in year
Created in year
Reclassification
Utitised

Lxchange differcnecs

At 315t December 2022

Company

At Ist January 2022
Created in year
Reclassification

At 31st December 2022

2022 2021

£000 £'000

303,273 285,188

116,409 85,351

9,909 10,862

(44147 (519,650)

{11.881) (138,246)

344,216 362,682

332.335 224,436

-3.6% -01.6%

Forward Warranty Other Total
loss en
contracts &
disputes

£'060 £0060 £'000 £000

3,761 65,814 28,233 58,808

(573) (13,011} (5,037 (18.621)

3,070 11,919 4,720 19,709

{108} 13 21 {69

(1,115) {17,564) (795) (19,474)

- {Z7) - (27)

5,035 48,149 27,142 80,326

Other Total

£°000 £'000

92 92

98 98

190 150

The amount and timing of payment of provisions for abilities is unceriain but they are expecied to be made substantially

within two years,

Warranty provisions are made in the normal cause of our business. Other provisions inelude provisions for insurance and legal
claims, alf of which are incurred in the normal course of business. Duc to the nature of such petential liabilities the period of

utilisation is nol ascertainable.

No provisien is made for any tax on capital gains or tax arising in the event of the distribution of profits retained by overseas
subsidiarics and associates as no liability is expected to crystallise.
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27. Deferved tax

Graap
2022 2021

Asset Liahility Total Assel Liability Total

£000 £000 £:000 £'600 £'a00 £000
Accelerated capital allowances 40 - 40 1.742 - 1.742
Deterred tax on pension balance - (15,916) (13,936) - (13,496) (13.496)
Unrelieved trading losses 30y - 309 610 - 610
Qther 5,27 5.276 6.941 - 6,941
Total 5625 as®ie) (w3l 9293 (13496) _ (4,203)
At beginning of year 4,291 (13.446) (4,203) 16,019 (2,5560) 13,463
Deferred tax movement in P&IL (3,681 o1 (3,5806) Vi 2.534 3,750
Deferred tax direct to equity 13 (2.337) {2.522) (7.920) {13.496) (21,416)
Total S625 0 US9I6) (w3l 9293 _(13496) T (4,203)
Company

2022 021

Assel Liahility Tutal Asset Liability Tota}

£1000 £000 £'000 £040 E'OiHy £000
Accelerated Capital Allowances 388 - I8 741 - 741
Deferred tax on pension balance - (17,18%) (17.188) - (13,718) (13,718)
Unrelieved trading losses 309 - 309 309 - 309
Other 1.361 - .36l 1,526 - 1,526
Total 2058 UTARRY Al 2576 (3718 (1L08)
At beginning of year 2,576 (13.718) (11.142) 8,346 - §.346
Deferred tax movement in P&T. (333) - {530) 1,339 - 1,339
Deferred tax direct lo cauity 13 (3.47T0 (1.455) (7.109) (13.718) (20,827)
Toutal o 2058 (17088) _ (15,130) _o2816_ (3718) __(11L142)

The deferred tax asset has been recognised us the Direetors have reviewed the CGranp's future forecast profits and are satisfied
that there will be sufticient profits 1o utilise the deferred tax assct.
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28. Employee benefit obligations

The Group, through lrusiees, operates a number of pension schemes; The Skanska Pension Fund, the Federnted Pension Plan
and The McNicholas Plc Relirement Benefits Scheme. Details of the latest actuarial valuations and reviews and the
assumptions used by the actugries are set out below.

For I'he McNicholas Plc Retirement Berefit Scheme the Group conclude that there is not an uncenditionat right of refund and
therefore under IAS 19, IFRIC 14, the Group only recognises the asset of the pension fund up to the limil of the liability. (the
asset ceiling). For the nther pension schemes the Group canciude that that Lhere is an unconditional right of refund and therefore

if there is a peasion surplus this will be recognised in the accounts.

Pension obligations and plan assets:

2022 2021

(%) (%)

Aclive members’ portion of obligations - b
Dormant pension rights 77 56
Pensioners' portion of obligations 23 39
14 vears 20 years

Weighted average duration

There are various types of risk inherent in the Company’s defined-benefit pension plans. Pepsion obligations are mainly
affectcd by the relevant discount rate, wage increases, inflation and life expectancy. The risk inherent in the plan assets is
mainly market risk. Overall, these risks may resuit in volatility in the Company’s equity and in increased future pension costs
and higher than estimated pension disburscments. Skanska continually monitors changes in its pension obligations and updates
the most important assumptions every quarter and other assumptions at least once a year. Pension commitments are calculated
by independent actuaries. The Company has prepared policy documents for the management of plan assets in the form of
investment guidelines regulating permitted investments and allocation frameworks for these. In addition, the Company uses
cxternal investment advisors who continually monitar development of the plan assets. The jong duration of the pension
obligations is partly matched by long-term investments in infrastructure projects snd property investments, and investments in
long-term interest-bearing securifics,

a) The Skanska Pension Fund

The Groug, in its capacity as employer, participates in The Skanska Pession Fund. The fund was closed to further accruals on
315t March 2018. Total contributions paid during the year by the Group (excluding employee contributions) were £6,304,000
(2021: £15,030,000). Ultimately, the contributions are met by the Group company for which the employees are working. The
Group expects to contribute £1.9 million to the Fund in the next financial year.

There are various types ol risk inherem in the Company s delined benefit pension plans. Pension obligations are mainly
affected by the relevant discount ragc, wage increases, inflation and life expectaney. The risk inherent in the plan assets is
mainly market risk. Overall, these risks may result in volatility in the Company’s equity and in increased future pension
costs and higher than cstimated pension disbursements, Skanska continually moniters changes in its pension obligations und
updates the mos! importanl assumptions every quarter and other assumptions at leas! once a year. Pension commitments are

calculated by independent actuaries,

‘The Company has prepared policy documents For the management of plan assets in the form of investmenl guidelines
regulating permitted investments and allocation framewarks for these. [n addition, (he Company uses externa! investment
advisors who continually monitor deveiopment of the plan assets. The leng duration of the pension obligations is partly
matched by the long-tenn investments in infrastructure projects and property investments, and investments in long-term

interest-bearing securities.

The 31st December 2022 valuation is an update of the actuarial valuation at 31st March 2021 but uses a lower rate of retum
on assets to discount the scheme liabilities.

The actuarial valuation in accordance with TAS 19 used the projected unit cost method based on the following assumptions:

2022 2021 2020 2019

(%) (%) (%) (%)

InNation 3.25 3.25 3.00 3.00
Rate of increase of pension 3.05 3.10 2.90 2.90
Rate of increase far deferred pension 2.65 2.65 230 2.20
Pre and post-retirement rates fo discount scheme liahililies 4.70 1.60 1.40 .60
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28. Employee benefit obligations - cantinued

Life expectaney after age 65 is 23 years for men and 24 years for women (2021: 22 years for men and 24 for women).

The financial position of the fund based on the above assumptions

Scheme Liabilities

Schemc assets

Total surplus/(deficil)

Related deferred tax (liability)/asset
MNet pension asset/(liability)

2022
E£'gon

(563,735}
532,487

68,752

L7, 288)

al36d

The fair value of the fund assets and the espected return on those assets are us {llows;

Quoted UK cquitics

Quoted overseds equilies

Quuoted gilts fixed

Quoted gilts index linked

Quoted UK corporate bonds fixed
Quoted UK corporate bonds index linked
{Quoted government bonds fised overseas
Quoted government bonds index linked overscas
Quoted overseas corporate bonds fixed
Cash

Infrasiructurc asscts

Freghold property*

Othes

Total

Valuation
of assels
2022
200

23,111
29,361
199,002
184.900
34,248

31,789
4,366
16,391
{24,069)
556
17,550

115,282
32487

2021 2020
£'000 £000
(912,551} (928,099)
967425 899,984
5,874 (28,115)
Ay s

__4nss (221

Valuntion of Expected

assels retarn

2021 2022

£'000 %%

67.285 4.70

107.096 4.70

223,14 4.70

112901 4,70

3,590 4,70

2,215 4.70

25947 4.70

10,243 4.70

13,866 4,70

147,632 4.70

1A4R 4,70

17.600 4.7D

134488 I A

- __‘.)_Q.?!‘z i :I 70

—_—. =

*The Company has a long-term lease with Skanska Consiraction Services Trustees Limiled (a related party).

Actial retzrn on fopd assels

2019
£'000

{840,819

.. 807,748

(33.071)
5422

29y

Fxpeeted
relurp
2021

%

160
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
1.60
160

2022 2021
£000 £'000
(313.388) 77478

The expecled long-term returns on assels assumption s assessed by considering, the current level of expected risk-free

investments in quoted governmant bonds,
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Notes to the Consolidated Finnacinl Statements
Tor The Year Ended 31st December 2022

28. Employee benefit obligations - continned

Analysis of the amount charged 10 the profit or loss

Current service cost
Employee contribution
Total operating charge

Analysis of the amount charged to Other Finance Cost

[ixpected return on pension scheme assels
Interest on pension liabilitics
Net finance return

Analysis of amount recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income

Actual return less expected return on assels

Experience gains and losses an labilitics

Changes in demographic assumptions

Changes in financial assumptions

Actuarial gain/(Toss} recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Cumulative loss recognised in statemcent of comprehensive income

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation 1st January

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (gains)losses

Obligation at 31st December

Changes in fair value of fund assels
Fair value of plan assets, |st January
Expected return on fund assets
Employer contribution

Bencfits paid

Administrative expenses

Actuarial {}osses)/gains

Fair value at 31st December

Scheme surpfus/(deficit)

67

2022 2021
£000 £2000
2022 202t
£'000 £000
15,382 12,517
(14,409) (12,821)
973 (304)
2022 202t
£000 £'000
(328,770) 64,961
(33.401) -
372,732 5,164
8,561 70,125

(128,043)

(136.604)

912,551 928,099
14,409 12,821
(25,894) (23.205)

— (337.331) o {5164
563,735 912,551
967,425 899,984
15,382 12,517
6,304 15,030
(25,89) (23,205)
(1,960) (1,862)
(328,770) 64,961
632,487 967,425
68,752 54,874




Skanska UK Ple (Registered number: 00784752)

Nutes to the Consolidaled Financia) Statements
For The Yenr Ended 31st December 2022

28. Employee henefif abligativns -~ continued

History of expericnce gains aud losses:

2022
Difference bebween expected and actoal retumn
on scheme assets £7000; (328,770
Percentage of scheme assets %6 _(52.0%)
Cxperience gains and fosses on scheme
liabilities £°000: 35401
Percentage of scheme Habilities % . 43%

Total amount recognised in stateineat of
comprehensive income £°000; 8,501
Percentage of seheme Habilitivs % 1.5%

Sensitivily Anafysis

2021 2020 2019
n4.961 £7,948 R7.878
(6% 9% _ _109%

- (4,595) -

s (0.5%) -

70123 (6,897} (11,338)
1% (0%) _dw

The sensitivity analysis is based on existing circamstapees, asymnptinns, and populations. Scusitivity of pension obligation at

the year-cnd to changes in assumiptions

Total pension liability at 31st December

Estimated decrease in pension fiability it discount rale inerenses by 0.25%
Estimated increase in pension liability if discount rade decraases by 1.25%,

Estimated increase in pension lability it infltian rate incrcases by (.25%
Estimated decrease in pension abitity if inflation rate decreases by 0.25%

b} The Federaled Pension Plan

2022
£'600

563,735

(v.44¥)
20,59

2317

2021
£'G0c

__ 912551,

{13,010
45933

22,123

. (21383)

The Group sise sponsuors The Ffederated Pension Plan, o defined benefit pension plan. The benefit provided by this plan is a
final salary benefit. The asseis of the Plan arc held separalely under Trust from those of the Group and are invested by the
Trusice, having, iaken appropriate investinent advice, As al 31st December 2022, in aceordance with the Plan rules there were
no outstanding contributions. ‘The pension contributions are sct by the Truslees based on the advice of the Fand acusury. The
Gropp expects to cantribuie approximately £3. 1 miilion {o the plan in the next financial year.

The foliowing valuation is an update of the actupry's valuation at Sth Apiil 2019, The actuarial valuation in accordance with
1AS 19 used the projected unit actuarial valuation based on the following assumptions:

2022

(%)

Inflation 325
Rate of increase of xalaries 350
Rale of increase of pension 3.25
Rate of increase of deferred pensions 3.25
Pre and posl-retirement rates o discouns scheme lahilities 4.7

68

2021
()

3.25
3.50
325
3.25
1.60

2020
(Yo}

3.00
325
3.00
3.00
140

2019
(%)

3.00
325
3.00
j.a0
2.00



Skansla UK Plc (Registered number: 00784752)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 3]st December 2022

28, Employee benefit obligations - continued

Life expectancy after age 65 is 22 years (2021: 22 years) for men and 24 years (2021 24 years) for women. ‘The financial
position of the scheme based on the above assumptions is detailed below:

2022 2021 2026 2019

£000 £°000 £900 £000

Scheme liabilities (61,691) {99,306 (94,622) {87,546)
Scheme assels 56,682 98,413 91,406 82,842
Scheme deficit (5,009) (393) (3,216) {4, 704)
Related deferred tax asset 1,252 223 6ll 800
Net pension deficit (3.751 (670) (2.605) (3.904)

The fair value of the fund assets and (he expected return on those assets are as follows:

Valuation Valuation Expected Expected

of assets of assels return return

2022 2021 2022 2021

£°000 £000 % Ya

Quoted equities 25,374 A4, 744 4.70 1.60
Quoted gilts fixed 18,769 18,424 4.70 1.60
Quaoted corporate bonds 9,009 5,245 4,70 1.60
Alternative 3,530 - 4.70 1.60
Total 56,682 98,413 4.70 .60

The expected long-term retums on assels assumption is assessed by considering the currem level of expected risk-free
investments in quoted government bonds.

Analysis of amount recognised 1o profit or loss

2022 2021

£4000 £'000

Current sarvice cost 3,249 3,250
Employee contribution (402} {448)
Total operating charge 2,847 2,802

Analysis of amount charged to Other Fintance Cost

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Expected return o pensicn scheme assets 1,598 1,292
lutercst on pension Habilities {1,604) (1,333)
Net finance retumn (6) (41)

Analysis of amount recognised in stalement of comprehensive income

2022 2021

£'000 £'000

Actual return less expecied return on assets {14,909) 3,893
Experience pains and losses on liabilitics (5,489) (924)
Changes in demographic assumptions - -
Changes in financial assumptions 46,220 (1,087
Actuarial gain recognised in statement of comprehensive income (4,178) 1,882
Cumulative loss recognised in statement of compreliensive income (16,034) {11,876)
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28, lKmployee benefit obligations - continued

Mavement in the present value of defined beneli obligation

Present value of abligation ist January
Service cost

Interest cost

Benelits paid

Actuarial losses

Clostng balance, 3151 December

Changes in fatr value of fund assets

Fair value of plan assets. [sUantry
Expected return on plan asseis
Company caniribution

Employee contribution

Benefits paid

Administrative expenscs

Actuarial gains

Closing balarnce, 31st December

History of experience gains and losses:

Difference between expected and actual return
on scheme assets £'000:
Percentage of schemg assets %

Experience pains and losses an scheme
Hiabilitics £°000:
Percenlage of scheme liabilities Ya

Total amournl recognised in stalement ol
comprehensive income £7000:
Percentage of scheme liabilitics %

The sensitivity analysis is based on existing cireumstances, assumplions. and poputations

Sensitivity of pension obligation at the year-end to changes in assumplions

Total pension Hability at 31stDecember

Estimated decrcase in pension labilily il discount rate increases by 0.25%

Estimated increasc in pension liability if discount rate decreases by 0.25%

|:stimated increase in pension Liability i€ inflation rale increases by 0.25%

Estimated decrease in pension liability if inflation rate decreases by (1.25%

2022 2021
£2000 £°000
99,306 94,672
3.249 3,250
1604 1,333
(1,737) (1,910)
(46,731)_ 201
61,691 99306
2022 2021
£000 £000
98413 91.406
1,598 1,292
309 3,407
402 448
(1,737 (1,910)
(204 (123)
(44.909) 3,893
 s6or2” 98413
2022 2021 2020 2019
(44,909) 3,893 5332 11,084
9% 1% 6% 13%
5,489 (V241 2.067 (3,112)
P R 2% (%)
{5.009) 1,882 1305 (201)
8% 2% 1% ()
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
srem 99306
(2,352) {5.036)
2,506 5.935_
2422 6,186
{2,281 (5.263)
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28. Employee benefit obligations - continued

¢) The McNicholas Plc Retirement Benefiis Scheme

The Group also sponsors The McNicholas Ple Retirement Benefits Scheme. a (lefined benafit plan, The assota of the Sclivae
i Licld separiiely under 1rust from those of the Group and are invested by the Trustee, having taken appropriate investment
advice. Asat 315t December 2022, in accordance with the Scheme rules there were no outstanding contributions. The pension
contribufions are set by the Trustees hased on the advice of the Fund acluary. The Group does not expect (o contribute ta the

plan in the next {inancial year,

For The McNicholas Plc Retirement Benefit Scheme the Group believes there is not an wnconditional right of refund and
therefore under tAS 1% and [FRIC 14, the Group only recognises the asset of the pension fund up to the imit of the tiability

(the asset ceiling).

The scheme was closed 1o both new members and future acerunls in 2003,

The valuation below is an update of the actuarial valuation at 28th February 2021, The actuarial valuation in accordance with
1AS 19 used the projected unit cost method based on the following assumptions:

2022 2021 2020 2019

(%} (%) (%) (%)

Inflation 325 3.25 3.00 3.00

Rate of increase of salarics 3.50 1.50 3.25 3.25

Rate of increase of pension 3.05 3.10 290 3.00

Rate of increasc for deferred pensions 290 2.65 2.30 3.00

Pre and pos! retirement rales to discount scheme lisbilities 4.70 L60 1.40 2.00

Life expectancy after age 65 is 22 years (2021: 22 years) for men and 24 ycars (2021: 24 years) for women.

The financial position of the scheme based on the above assumptions is detailed below:

2022 2021 2020 2089

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Schonte liabilities {(14,120) (21,109} 21,221 {22,223

Scheme assets exchuding asset ceiling 16,498 24 822 24,901 22,632

Less asset ceiling provision (2,378) (3,713) (3,680) {409

Pension deficit - - - -
The fair value of the fund assels and the expected return an thase assels are as follows:

Yaluation Valuation Expected Expected

of assets of assets returp return

2022 2021 2022 2021

£7000 £'000 Y %

Quoted UK equities - 1,454 4.70 1.60

Quoted UK bonds 8,205 10,297 4.70 1.60

Other 8,293 13.071 .70 1.60

Taolal 16,498 24,822 4.70 1.60
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Nates to the Consalidated Financial Statements
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28. Employee benefit obligations — continued

Fhe expected long-term yeluis on assels assumplien is assessed by considering the current fevel of expected risk-free

invesiments in quoted povernment bonds.

Analysis of The amount charged to profit or loss.

Carrenl seevice Lost

Analysis of amouant charged to Other Finance Cost

Expected relurn on pension scheme asscts
Interest on pension lizbilities
Nel finance retum

Annlysis of amount reengnised in statement of vomptehensive incone

Actoal return less expected rurm on assels

Fxperience gains and losses vn Liabilities

Changes in demoggraphic assunmptions

Changes in financial assumplions

Efiect of the asset ceiling

Actuarial loss recognised in sittemment of comprehensive inceme

Cumulative gain recognised in Staternent af comiprehensive income

Movement in the present value of defined benetit obligation

Present value of abligation 1* Junuary
Interest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial gains

Closing balance, 31" December

Changes in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets, ¥ January
Expected refurn on plan assets
Benefits paid

Actuarial losses

Closing balance. 31° Dccember

2022
£'000

222
£°000

6,950
1.464

{8,414)

2022
£'900

24,109

335

(374)

_ (6,950)
14,120

2022
£000

PANT
35
37
(6,950)
14,120

202t
£'000

2021
£000

@
(243}

245

1,921

2021
£:004

21,224
294

(404)

2}

R TN




Skanska UK Plc (Registered nwmber: 0078.4752)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

28, Employee benefit obligations — continued

History of experience gains and losses:

2022 2021 2020 2019
Nifferenre hatwern expected and actoal relum
on scheme assets £°000: {6.950) ) {901) 1,640
Percentage of scheme assets % (49% o (4%) 7%
Experience gains and losses on scheme
liabilities £'000: 1,464 (243) 230 450
Percentage of scheme liabilities % 10% {1%6) 1% 2%
Total amount recognised in statement of
comprehensive income £7000: - - - {30}
Percentage of scheme habilities % - - - ()
The sensitivity analysis is based on existing circumstances, assumpltions, and populations
Sensitivity of pension obligation at the year-end to changes in assumptions
2022 202t
£'000 £'000
Tatal pension liability at 31st December 14,120 21,109
Estimated decrease in pension liability if discount rate increases by 0.25% (469) {1,009)
Estimated increase in pension liability if discount rate decreases by 0.25% 496 1,060
Fstimated incrense in pension liability if inflation rate increases by 0.25% 342 844
Estimated decrease in pension liability if* inflation rate decreases by 0.25% {385) {798)

29. Ultimate parent Company

The immediate parent undertaking is Skanska Construction Holdings UK Limited, a Company incorparated in the UK.

The ultimate parent Company is Skanska AB, a Company incorporated in Sweden, which heads the smallest and largest Group
in which the results of the Group and Company are cansolidated. The segistered address for Skanska AB is Warfvinges viig

25, SE-112 74 Stackholm, Sweden.

Copies of the Skanska AB financial statements can be obtained from www.skanska.com.

30. Contingent liabilities

The Group faces contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees and poiential claims by third partics under conlracting
apreements cntered inlo by them in the normal course of business. These are provided as liabilities only 1o the extent that the
Directors believe that the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as # resull of a past event and it is probable that an
outflow of econemic henefit will be required to settle the obligation, Contingent liabilities relating to the Group's portion of
the joint and several liabilities for the obligalions of joint operations totalled £4,027.000 {2021: £9,855,000).
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3. Related party disclosures

Transactions between the parent cntity, subsidiary companies and other Group undertakings are detailed below. Balances witlh
the Parenl entity, subsidiary companies and other Group undertakings are disclosed in the debtors and creditors notes. Amounts

owed to and from these entities are unsecured and interest free.

Retated party

Nature of relalionship

Guodiservce provided

Tyansattions in year

Remuneration of key management personnel
Details of rermuneration of the Directors, who are the key managoment peescane] of the Cempany. are cantained in Noie 6.
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2022 Fig]
£1090 £'0a3
“Skanska T Fellow Graup undenaking Ultimaiely Skanska UK Ple paid dovdens 000 | 16,100
Crnstrection awned by Skanska A lu this enfity in the year
[olditigs UK
Limited e V? 4 R . I
Skanskz AL Ulﬁm;ﬁ}mn:nt Crnpany of Skanska T Skonska AT provides - [ 1.929 “1080
UK Ple numnspement serviess o Skauska
. _ - ~ URPle _ . T .
Skanska AD Ultimate parent Company of Skunska Al iec a15 645
UK Pl ageinpnt senvices foam
e ] Mgk UK Mo j— _
“Skanska TAM Skanskn TAM Luniied holds Publie. | Skanska UK Ple provides B '
Limited Fimuneizt Initiative investmentls on aceotnning serviees 1 the eahity
behall of the Skansha Pensign Fund R L A
Skanska TAM Shanska TAM {Norehe) Lunted Tobds Skcanska UK e provides R ) TR
(Nmdicy Lanited fublie Financial Duauative 1 P services o lhe entily
on behalf of the: pensian schemwes af
Felinw proup wndesinkipps . _ __ _ -
Bkanska Skanska Construclion Services Skanska UK Pleienls onoftice By i 1.388
Construction Toustee Linited 15 @ corperate 1nstee i Dancaster from the Skanska
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Skanska UK Plc (Registered nuniber: 60784752)

Naotes ta the Consolidated Finnncial Statements
For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

32. Reconcilintion of prefit before income tax to eash used in operntions

Group
Notes
Profit before income lax
Depreciation and impairment 8
Amortisation of intangible ) 12
Prefit on sale of business operations 10
26

{Decrease)/increase in provisions
FEmployee ownership scheme
Pension service cost 28
Pension company contribution
TFinance costs

Finance income

~1 o~

Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other reccivables
Increase in trade and other payables

Net cash from operations

Company
Nates

Profit before income tax
Depreciation and impairment
Amortisation of intangibles 12
Impairment of investments

Increase in provisions 26
Dividends received

Employee ownership scheme
Pension company contribution
Finance cosls

Finance income

Increase in trade and other receivables
{Decrenselincrease in trade and other payables

Net cash used in operations

75

2022 2021
£1000 £000
55,002 73,266
16,233 14,777
1.082 -

- (29,069)
(18,482) 18,753
2,552 2,490
2,847 2,802
(7,259 (16,452)
1,868 2,022
{13,656) (2,876)
40,187 65,713
4,008 o4
(48,551) 6,491
10,354 13,191
5,996 85,489
022 2021
£000 £000
27,140 24,991
11,008 9,657
1,082 -
285 340

150 -
(50,000) (40,000)
2,552 2,490
(4,344) (13,168)
506 1,759
(3,202) (4,308)
(14,783) (18,239)
(18,799) {6,548)
{585) 620
(34,167) {24,167)




Skanska UK Pl (Registered number: 00784752)
Nutes to the Consolidated Financial Stalements

For The Year Ended 31st December 2022

33. Joinl operations

Tlie Group has entered into a number of Join! vperations with diftferent partners for the purposes of underlaking specific
contracts. The principal Joint antangements within the Group fexciuding those between Group companics) are as foltows:

Name of Joint arrangements Address Juint arrangement partners Cantrol

Skanshka Construction UK Limited

Skanska BAM Northers Hub Joint Venture L7 BAM Nuttall Limited S50%
Costain Skanska C405 Joint Venturc 1.2 Coslyin Limited 50%
Clostain Skanska C360 Joint Venture 1.2 Costain Limited 50%
Costain Skanska C412 Joint Venture 1,2 Cuostain Limited 50%

. . Balfour Beatey Ulility Solutions Limited / o
SMB Joint Venture 1.4,5 MWII Treatment Limited 33%

UK Grid Soluions Limited /

IR Y i { e oy
SEESA AMS Join! Venture [T ¢ shult Macdonald Limited 20%
Costain Skanska loint Venture -1, P 1.2 Costuin Lamited  47.38%
RO 1.8 Morrison Water Scrvice Limited 0%
HS2 Enabling 1.2 Costain Limited 30%
HS2 Main Works SCS 51 1.2.6 Steabap AG-UR Branch / Costain |imited 34%
HS2 Main Works SCS 82 1246 Strahap AG-UK Branch / Costain Limited 344
Skanska Posr A-Hak Juint Venture 112 Porr Bau GablE A-Tlak International BV, 40%%
Bakerion Line Link Joint Vemure 1,2 Costain Limited 50%

2 alk satly Civil Eneincerd
A4 Huntingdon to Cambridpe 1,24 RBallour Beatty Civil | ngincering I m_)ll\::d! 33%
= C'ostain [Limited

Skanska ESS Construction Handelsholay, 113 Nkanska Sveripe AB 25%
Cementation Skanska Limited

Cementation Skenska Balfour Beatty GF: Joint b Halfour Beatty Ground Engincering, Limited 0%
Venture

Skanska J.V. Projects Limited

Skanska Balfour Beatty M25 Joinl Ventuie 1 Rallour Beatty Clvil Engincering Limited 0%

The addresses of these Joint arrangements are us follows:

1 | Hercules Way, Leavesden, Walford, WBD25 7068

2 Costain House, Vanwall Business Park, Maidenhead, Hoerkshire, S1.6 4UR

3 The Curve Building Axis Business Park Hursicane Way Langley Berkshire SL3 8AG
4 5 Charchill Place, Canary Whar!, London, B4 511

5 Spring Lodpe, 172 Chester Road, Helsby, Cheshire, WAS OAR

6 Sirabag AG UK Branch, The Tower, 3rd Floor 63 Buckingham Gate, London, SWI1LE 6AS
7 81 James House, Knoll Road, Camberiey, Surrey, GUIES 3XW

8 Abcl Smith House, Gunnels Wood Read. Stevenape, Herts S 28T

9 St Leonards Building. Hary Kerr Drive, Stafford, STI6 1WT

10 Mott Macdonald House, 8-10 Sydenhan: Road, Croydon. Surrey. CRO 2EY

11 Ahsherpgasse 47, 1100 Vienna, Austein

12 Siecnoven 2-6, NL-4196 HG ‘Trichit, the Netheriands

13 Warfvinges vig 25, SE-112 74, Stockholm, Sweden

34. Post balance shect events

There have heen no post halanee sheet events that require disclosure or adjustment in these Dnancial statements,
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